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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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TRANSFER OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN ISLANDS

Suntera (Cayman) Limited

Suite 3204, Unit 2A, Block 3, Building D
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THE HONG KONG SPECIAL ADMINISTRATIVE
REGION OF THE PEOPLE’S REPUBLIC OF CHINA
(THE “"PRC")("HONG KONG")

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Investors’ enquiries:

17M Floor
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183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai

Hong Kong

Transfer of shares:
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Hong Kong
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Cayman Islands
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OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
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Tsuen Wan, New Territories

Hong Kong
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Shenzhen, the PRC

WEBSITE

www.mingfaigroup.com

STOCK CODE
03828

CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
~AAEHR (&)

Z S ED

B RUOKE S ET R B FT

$ﬂ§% Bl
MARF=ERR

%%

IR

AFAREZ+=#

FEHETERNBFELE

Suntera (Cayman) Limited

Suite 3204, Unit 2A, Block 3, Building D
P.O. Box 1586, Gardenia Court, Camana Bay
Grand Cayman, KY1-1100

Cayman Islands

8 % BUED

¢$AEA@IW¢HD
EBHBTUE (F58)
ROBFETD R
BARPREFFELER AR
REEZ -
BE
BFERRNERI1835
XL
17MiZ
RGAEF
i?/%
B ERRER183
Aﬂ¢u
1788171217165k 48
2SR
PO Box 309
Ugland House
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman Islands
MREENREBTEEL XM
BB
IR |
/gﬁiﬂk}iﬁ
TMLE %81ED3 =
FEFEE XM
A BRI T
BEm @R AR
48 1k
www.mingfaigroup.com
iR
03828
HIBREERERAR o« —ZE-——FF®

03



Revenue increased 6.1% to approximately HK$1,435.8 million
(2020: approximately HK$1,353.1 million).

Gross profit decreased 25.8% to approximately HK$269.6
million (2020: approximately HK$363.5 million).

Gross profit margin decreased 8.1 percentage points to 18.8%
(2020: 26.9%).

Operating loss is approximately HK$92.4 million (2020:
operating profit approximately HK$102.2 million) and the loss
attributable to owners of the Company is approximately
HK$93.5 million (2020: profit attributable to owners of the
Company approximately HK$79.0 million).

No final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021 was
recommended and no interim dividend was declared during the
six months ended 30 June 2021. For the year ended 31
December 2020, a final dividend of HK1.5 cents per share of
the Company (the “Share”) was declared, together with the
interim dividend of HK1.0 cent per Share, representing a total
annual dividend of HK2.5 cents per Share and an annual
dividend payout ratio of 23.1%.
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
TFHMBEHRE

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

Years ended 31 December
BZ+-A=t+—-HLEE
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
T+ ZE-N\F ZE-NF ZZE-FTF —EZ-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FHET THT
Revenue WA 1,863,559 2,052,708 2,043,095 1,353,099 1,435,826
Profit/(loss) before REFTERLAD
income tax mH (E18) 143,248 130,931 127,102 101,537 (94,405)
Income tax expenses FieRiAY (34,408) (34,850) (35,022) (26,937) (3,520)
Profit/(loss) for the year ERHEM/(BR) 108,840 96,081 92,080 74,600 (97,925)

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
nEEE -REaRRkARE

As at 31 December

R+=B=+-H
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
—FtF  ZFA\F  ZEF-NF ZFIFF SESF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FTHET FAET FET THET
ASSETS BE

Non-current assets EREEE 380,180 467,444 569,549 610,755 593,988
Current assets REEE 1,269,650 1,237,607 1,269,396 1,192,680 1,144,736
Total assets BEHE 1,649,830 1,705,051 1,838,945 1,803,435 1,738,724

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EERkEE
Total equity B 1,060,440 1,090,530 1,130,906 1,192,334 1,094,446
Non-current liabilities ErRBER 2,792 10,339 17,905 24,153 22,574
Current liabilities mEAR 586,598 604,182 690,134 586,948 621,704
Total liabilities BEGE 589,390 614,521 708,039 611,101 644,278
Total equity and liabilities HREXRAE 1,649,830 1,705,051 1,838,945 1,803,435 1,738,724

AEERERERAT ¢« —T-—FFI] 05
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KEY SHAREHOLDER VALUE INDICES

TERREERER

Revenue
N
HK$ million B &87T
(% Change &) B L)

2017 1,863.6
e (+9.8%)

2018 2,052.7
—E—)\F (+10.1%)

2019 2,043.1
Bk L2

2020 1,353.1
—mom (-33.8%)

Basic earnings/(loss) per Share attributable to
owners of the Company

FAREAAEEERERETR(FE)

HK cents 7811l
(% Change B E S Lt)

2017 15.1
ZT—+F (+18.0%)

2018 13.9
—ZT-N\F (-7.9%)

2019 135
—T-NEF (-2.9%)

2020 10.8
—E-TF (-20.0%)

2021
—E-—F
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Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the Company

EAEEBAEMEER (BB

HKS million & &7
(% Change BB 5 Lt)

2017 108.9
T (+20.5%)
2018 100.2
-2\ Ly
2019 971.9
—E (:2.3%)
2020 79.0
—z—m (-19.3%)

2021
B

Dividend per Share

BREE
HK cents 78Il
(% Change # &) & 9 tt)
2017 7.0
flosB (-73.1%)
2018 7.0
—EN\E (0%)
2019 45
—T (-35.7%)
2020 2.5
—m s (-44.4%)

2021 -
—= & (-100%)



Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Ming Fai International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”), | am
pleased to present the audited annual results of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

Within a short period of two years, COVID-19 has undergone several
variants and leaders in various countries and regions are constantly
updating their policies to response. Even though the COVID-19
pandemic is still at a stage of large-scale outbreak, people who have
experienced the pandemic have gradually resumed their lives. Global
tourism experienced a mild increase in 2021, more international
tourist arrivals (overnight visitors) than in 2020 but remained below
the levels of pre-pandemic year 2019 according to preliminary
estimates. Rising vaccination rates combined with softer travel
restrictions due to increased cross-border coordination and protocols,
have all helped release pent up demand in 2021. However, Asia and
the Pacific remains the region with the largest share of closed
destinations. The recovery remains fragile and uneven amid the
emergence of the new Omicron variant and surging infections in
some parts of the world. Coupled with aforesaid influences, the
China-U.S. trade war, global awareness and more stringent laws and
regulations on environmental protection, increased in production
costs, together with the fierce competition and over-supply of
disinfectant products in global markets, the Group faced a
challenging year in 2021.
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The Group recorded an overall revenue of approximately HK$1,435.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2021, an increase of 6.1%
as compared with approximately HK$1,353.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020, in which the hospitality supplies business,
operating supplies and equipment (“OS&E") business and health care
and hygienic products business contributed approximately
HK$1,088.1 million, HK$156.4 million and HK$191.3 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021 (for the year ended 31 December
2020: approximately HK$820.9 million, HK$112.9 million and
HK$419.3 million), respectively.

Gross profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 was
approximately HK$269.6 million, representing a 25.8% decrease as
compared with approximately HK$363.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2020. The gross profit margin of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2021 decreased 8.1 percentage points to
18.8% (for the year ended 31 December 2020: 26.9%). Loss
attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2021 stood at approximately HK$93.5 million (for the year
ended 31 December 2020: profit attributable to owners of the
Company approximately HK$79.0 million), a 218.3% decrease
compared with 2020.

The Group has been continuing to produce disposable infection
control products such as medical equipment covers, as well as our
health care and hygienic products under our self-labeled brands
“Pasion”, "everybody LABO” and “"MING FAI”. Even in the
post-pandemic era, the Group believes that the health awareness
raised by the public will not decline. The Group continues to shoulder
the social responsibilities of contributing to the public safety and
considers that the production of health care and hygienic products is
still indispensable. The Group will continue to diversify the product
range, strengthen the research and development with new
technologies on our health care and hygienic products and increase
sales channels to balance against the intense market competition and
gain more market share. The Group will further provide high-quality
products and services to consolidate our “Pasion” brand.
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Looking ahead, there is no definite answer to when the global
pandemic will end, and humanity is learning to adopt the new
environment. The recent surge in COVID-19 cases and the emergence
of the Omicron variant could disrupt the recovery of tourism in early
2022. The travel, tourism, and aviation industries will continuously be
impacted and bring certain impacts to the Group’s hospitality
supplies and OS&E businesses.

In order to cope with the uncertain environment, the Group will
closely monitor the possible risks and strive to minimise the impacts.
The Group will continue to improve cost efficiency and productivity
by making use of existing production bases to diversify production to
meet market demands. In addition, the Group endeavor to develop
new business opportunities, in line with its internal flexible and solid
business strategies, to consolidate the Group’s business performance
in the coming year.

On behalf of the Board, | am sincerely grateful to our Shareholders
and business partners for their support and trust over the years. | also
highly appreciate the continued loyalty, professionalism, and
contributions of our management and employees.

CHING Chi Fai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2022
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Key Financial Highlights

Set out below are the consolidated key financial highlights of the
Group:

Revenue KA

Gross Profit EF

(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of Vi N/NCTE PPN
the Company (B18),/ & F

ARAEEARIEER
EAR(BR)/BFCEM)
ARAEEARIEER
E (BR8N CEW)
BRBE CEL)

Basic (loss)/earnings per Share attributable
to owners of the Company (HK cents)
Diluted (loss)/earnings per Share attributable

to owners of the Company (HK cents)
Dividend per Share (HK cents)

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the total revenue of the
Group recorded an increase of 6.1% to approximately HK$1,435.8
million compared with approximately HK$1,353.1 million in 2020.
For the year ended 31 December 2021, the revenues of the
hospitality supplies business, OS&E business and health care and
hygienic products business were approximately HK$1,088.1 million,
HK$156.4 million and HK$191.3 million (for the year ended 31
December 2020: approximately HK$820.9 million, HK$112.9 million
and HK$419.3 million) respectively, which represented 75.8%,
10.9% and 13.3% (for the year ended 31 December 2020: 60.7%,
8.3% and 31.0%) of the Group’s total revenue respectively.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group’'s gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2021
decreased 25.8% to approximately HK$269.6 million, compared with
approximately HK$363.5 million in 2020. Gross profit margin
decreased 8.1 percentage points to 18.8% from 26.9% as compared
with the prior year, due to the rising prices of certain raw materials,
including certain chemicals and soap noodles, and increase in
manufacturing costs.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of the Company

Loss attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2021 was approximately HK$93.5 million (for the year
ended 31 December 2020: profit attributable to owners of the
Company approximately HK$79.0 million).

Other income and cost reduction

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group has
received various governmental subsidies in the following regions.
They are recognised either as other income or cost reduction as
reflected in relevant expenses.

BEEENWR DM (&)

EREEEANES (BE) RF

HE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HLEEFEE " K
“7%%%&%&%%%%5§E%ﬁﬂﬁi
ZETFF+ZA=+—RHALEEE KA
A AEEREF479.08 88T °

E/ﬂ#ﬁ?iﬁ/ﬂ?%ﬁﬁfﬁ

BE_ZT_—FR-ZF-_FTFE+-_A=1—
BIEFE - $%IKHT%EW@&E&W
fHEL - W EHR B R A E M AT AR
% YERHEBERAFHRER -

Region Year ended 31 December
HE BE+-A=+—HLEE
2021 2020
—B-—F —E-THF
HK$ million HK$ million
BEAET BEBTT
The PRC H 3.2 25.0
Hong Kong B 0.1 5.4
Other regions Hithih = 0.2 1.1
Total CE 3.5 31.5

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded an
item of other income of approximately HK$8.2 million on the
resulting gain and realisation of exchange reserve upon dissolution of
a subsidiary.

st

ALCOHOL

REBE-FT-_FTF+-_A=+—-BLFE
W AL RS BEA— M 8RRz Wt
""""" HINE S FEER8.2AEETL . —HAMIK
AO

PAEERERERAR o —FT_—FFRH

=



(Loss)/earnings per Share

Basic and diluted loss per Share attributable to owners of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2021 were HK12.8 cents
and HK12.8 cents (for the year ended 31 December 2020: basic and
diluted earnings per Share were HK10.8 cents and HK10.8 cents)
respectively.

Final dividend

The Board did not propose a final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2021 (for the year ended 31 December 2020: HK1.5
cents). No interim dividend was declared for the six months ended 30
June 2021. A sum of the interim and final dividends for the year
ended 31 December 2020 was HK2.5 cents per Share.

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group has always pursued a prudent treasury management
policy and actively manages its liquidity position with standby
banking facilities to cope with daily operation and potential capital
demands for future development.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
amounted to approximately HK$251.2 million (as at 31 December
2020: approximately HK$393.0 million).

The Group’s net assets as at 31 December 2021 was approximately
HK$1,094.4 million (as at 31 December 2020: approximately
HK$1,192.3 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEETWR DN (&)
Borrowings EE
The Group's borrowing structure and maturity profile are as follows: AEE 7 BEABRIBERANOT
Borrowing structure: EEEE
As at 31 December
R+=A=+-8H
2021 2020
—E-—-f —ECTHF
Effective Effective
interest rate  HK$ million interest rate HK$ million
BERAE BEER TS BEAT
Secured bank borrowings Floating rate of 4.3 Floating rate of 8.3
with repayable on 1.7% per annum over 1.7% per annum over
demand clauses 1-month Hong Kong Inter-bank 1-month HIBOR
Offered Rate (“HIBOR")
AEREREEEKEK —BAEARTEAERFEER —ERAEARITRAERSE
ZEERRITEE ([EBRTRAEREE]) MEFIR.7% 27 EFIR
MEFE17%ZFBFIE
Floating rate of the higher of 8.4 Floating rate of the higher of 10.6
1.7% per annum over 1.7% per annum over
1-month HIBOR or 1-month HIBOR or
the cost to the bank of the cost to the bank of
funding the borrowing funding the borrowing
—EREERTRAXKFEER —EAABRARTRERS X
MEFE17% INEF I *1.7%
FRTRIREREZREE KRTBARENEA RS E
23 E R =E 2FEBHE
Floating rates ranging from 85.2 Floating rates ranging from 63.5
1.5%-1.7% per annum over 1.5%-1.7% per annum over
1-month London Inter-bank 1-month LIBOR
Offered Rate (“LIBOR")
—BRARBBITRAIEFEER — AR mIABITRAEREE
((RBBTREREE]) MNFERNEIS5%E1.7%
MAFERE1L5%E1.7% ZF B R
ZFE R =
Floating rate of the higher of 40.3  Floating rate of the higher of 34.1
1.7% per annum over 1.7% per annum over
1-month LIBOR or 1-month LIBOR or
the cost to the bank of the cost to the bank of
funding the borrowing funding the borrowing
—EARBBRITEERE =X —ERRBEBRTRAEREE
M F*E1.7% IEFE1.7%
RE|TBARERETZBSE FRITBABRER N 2B mE
ZEBF =R ZIFBFE
Secured bank borrowings Fixed rates ranging from 0.3 Fixed rates ranging from 1.4
without repayable on 1.4%-2.4% per annum 1.4%-2.4% per annum
demand clauses
I 7 ESRE RGN NFERE14%E2.4% NFFEREIA%E2.4%
ZEERRITEE Z B E R = 2 B M &
Secured other borrowings Fixed rates ranging from 2.8 Fixed rates ranging from 3.2
without repayable on 0.36%-1.26% per annum 1.38%-2.16% per annum
demand clauses
I 17 ZSRAE R R NFEFE0.36%F1.26% NFFERE1.38%F2.16%
ZEEREMER 2 [El E Fl % 2 B =
141.3 121.1
HIBREERERAR o« —ZE-——FF®
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEBSwmR DM (&)

Maturity profile:

The repayment terms of the borrowings without taking into
consideration the effect of repayable on demand clauses are as
followings:

FIEIRER

X\ RIRERER

R FRERMT -

VHET  EE

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2021 2020
—E_—fF —T-EF
HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEABT
Within 1 year R1ER 64.2 55.3
Between 1 and 2 years 15229 28 30.8 25.4
Between 2 and 5 years 2E5F 7 fH 44.7 38.8
Over 5 years S5FE 1.6 1.6
141.3 121.1
Currency denomination: BEKEE -
As at 31 December
R+=BR=+—H
2021 2020
:g:—f‘i —? — = $
HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEETT
Hong Kong dollars BT 12.8 18.9
United States dollars EViH 125.4 97.6
Japanese Yen HIE 3.1 4.6
141.3 121.1
Details of the borrowings are set out in Note 22 to the consolidated & EsHIEH NG S B BHMKRIT 22 -
financial statements.
Charges on Group assets EEEEHHF
Except for bank and other borrowings of approximately HK$3.1 HBR-_ZE-_—F+_A=+—HZRITEH

million as at 31 December 2021 (as at 31 December 2020:
approximately HK$4.6 million), which was secured by personal
guarantee of a non-controlling interest of the Group, other bank
borrowings were secured by certain property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and a bank deposit of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for borrowings
are as follows:

BEEENWR DM (&)

MEECZDENEEZREENT

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —EZFTHF
HK$ million HK$ million
BEAETT BEET
Property, plant and equipment  #1% - [§E k& E 21.2 24.6
Right-of-use assets FHEEE 29.1 30.2
Bank deposit RITHER 11.7 -
62.0 54.8

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio was calculated as net debt (borrowings less cash
and cash equivalents) divided by total equity. The gearing ratio was
not applicable to the Group as at 31 December 2021 and as at 31
December 2020.

Foreign currency exposure

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various
currency exposures, primarily with respect to Renminbi (“RMB"). The
Group currently does not deploy a foreign currency hedging policy.

The Group primarily sourced its raw materials in the PRC. The related
currency exposure with respect to RMB is managed through
increasing revenue denominated in the same currency.

Capital commitments and contingent liabilities

Details of the capital commitments as at 31 December 2021 is set
out in Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements. The Group
has no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2021.

BEEBMELE
BEABLRIEFES (B ,ﬁﬂfﬁ%fﬁi&
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The two-year COVID-19 outbreak have dealt a heavy blow to the
global economy. The new variants of COVID-19 led to the pandemic
rebound and strict travel blockade continue to occur everywhere,
disrupting the pace of economic recovery. The travel, tourism and
aviation industries were severely affected, the Group’s businesses
recorded unsatisfactory results for the year ended 31 December
2021, which was mainly attributable to (i) the decrease in revenue
from Health Care and Hygenic Products Business as a result of the
keen competition and over-supply of the disinfectant products in the
global markets; (ii) the deterioration of gross profit margin due to the
rising prices of certain raw materials and higher costs of
manufacturing during the year ended 31 December 2021; (iii) the
increase in provision for impairment of trade and bills receivables; (iv)
the declining impact of various governmental subsidies and related
cost reduction and the non-existence of the resulting gain and
realisation of exchange reserve upon dissolution of a subsidiary as
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2020; and (v) the
unprecedent new waves of infections and the spread of COVID-19 in
Japan before the Tokyo Olympics during the mid of 2021 had led to
travel restrictions and a delay in recovery in the tourism industry in
the country. Further, the prolonged pandemic has caused changes in
consumer behaviour, with more customers shifting to e-commerce
platform. Based on the latest market conditions, the Group has
assessed the recoverable amount of the goodwill of the Japan
business, and an impairment loss of HK$4.8 million is recognised
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Hospitality Supplies Business

Based on UNWTO World Tourism Barometer issued in January 2022,
global tourism experienced a mild 4% upturn in 2021, with 15
million more international tourist arrivals (overnight visitors) than in
2020 but remained 72% below the levels of pre-pandemic year 2019
according to preliminary estimates. The economic contribution of
tourism (tourism direct gross domestic product) is estimated at
US$1.9 trillion in 2021, above the US$1.6 trillion in 2020, but still fall
below the pre-pandemic value of US$3.5 trillion.

Revenue from the Group’s hospitality supplies business for the year
ended 31 December 2021 increased 32.5% to approximately
HK$1,088.1 million (for the year ended 31 December 2020:
approximately HK$820.9 million), which contributed 75.8% (2020:
60.7%) to the Group’s total revenue. Gross profit from the hospitality
supplies business increased 13.4% to approximately HK$207.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2021 (for the year ended 31
December 2020: approximately HK$182.7 million). The segment’s
gross profit margin decreased 3.3 percentage points to 19.0% for
the year ended 31 December 2021 (for the year ended 31 December
2020: 22.3%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

According to the “China’s Tourism Performance: Review & Forecast
(2021~2022)" (Blue Book of China’s Tourism Economy No. 14) issued
by the China Tourism Academy, the estimated domestic tourists and
tourism revenue in the PRC were 3.431 billion person-times and
RMB3.02 trillion respectively in 2021, which increased 19% and 35%
as compared with 2020 and recovered to 57% and 53% respectively
as compared with 2019. Hospitality supplies business revenue for the
year ended 31 December 2021 from the PRC was approximately
HK$503.7 million (for year ended 31 December 2020: approximately
HK$390.2 million), representing 46.3% (for the year ended 31
December 2020: 47.5%) of the total hospitality supplies business
segment revenue.

Hospitality supplies business revenues for the year ended 31
December 2021 from Hong Kong, the North America, Europe, other
Asia Pacific regions and Australia were approximately HK$150.4
million, HK$160.0 million, HK$97.3 million, HK$144.5 million and
HK$30.4 million (for the year ended 31 December 2020:
approximately HK$126.8 million, HK$104.6 million, HK$74.5 million,
HK$110.2 million and HK$12.5 million) respectively, accounted for
13.8%, 14.7%, 8.9%, 13.3% and 2.8% (for the year ended 31
December 2020: 15.4%, 12.7%, 9.1%, 13.4% and 1.5%) of the
total hospitality supplies business segment revenue respectively.

Hospitality supplies business segment revenue
by geographical location

14.7%

The PRC HEl
Hong Kong #Hi&

North America 1t

Europe &M
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEENwWR DM (&)

Operating Supplies and Equipment Business

Based on the latest China Construction Pipeline Trend Report
released by Lodging Econometrics, 566 hotels/96,472 rooms were
opened in China throughout 2021. Revenue from the Group’s OS&E
business was approximately HK$156.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2021, representing an increase of 38.5% as compared
with approximately HK$112.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2020, and representing 10.9% (for the year ended 31
December 2020: 8.3%) to the Group's total revenue. Gross profit
from the OS&E business increased by 24.0% to approximately
HK$37.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 (for the year
ended 31 December 2020: approximately HK$30.0 million). The
segment’s gross profit margin decreased 2.8 percentage points to
23.8% for the year ended 31 December 2021 (for the year ended 31
December 2020: 26.6%).

For the year ended 31 December 2021, OS&E business revenues from
the PRC and other markets were approximately HK$125.0 million and
HK$31.4 million (for the year ended 31 December 2020:
approximately HK$71.9 million and HK$41.0 million) respectively,
representing 79.9% and 20.1% (for the year ended 31 December
2020: 63.6% and 36.4%) of the total OS&E business segment
revenue respectively.

The Group continues to focus on the replenishment businesses and
seek new cooperation possibilities, and at the same time deepen the
cooperation relationship with long-term customers, and continuously
increase the variety of the products.

Operating supplies and equipment business
segment revenue by geographical location

2021
—E_——5

® The PRC AE]
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Health Care and Hygienic Products Business

The Group has been producing the disposable infection control
products such as the medical equipment covers and health care
products. A variety of health care and hygienic products under the
self-labeled brands “Pasion”, “MING FAI” and “everybody LABO"
were produced since the first quarter of 2020 for taking part in the
corporate social responsibilities with the outbreak of COVID-19
pandemic. Even though the saturated supply and keen competition
of the disinfectant products in the global markets has led to a
substantial decline of the Group’s health care and hygienic products
business revenue in 2021 as compared with 2020, the Group
considers that the production of health care and hygienic products is
still indispensable as the public health awareness has been risen after
the pandemic. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
has also participated in community activities and donated our health
care and hygienic products to various charitable organisations.

Revenue from the Group’s health care and hygienic products business
for the year ended 31 December 2021 was approximately HK$191.3
million (for the year ended 31 December 2020: approximately
HK$419.3 million), which contributed 13.3% (for the year ended 31
December 2020: 31.0%) to the Group's total revenue. Gross profit
from the health care and hygienic products business was
approximately HK$25.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2021 (for the year ended 31 December 2020: approximately
HK$147.2 million). The segment’s gross profit margin decreased 22.0
percentage points to 13.1% for the year ended 31 December 2021
(for the year ended 31 December 2020: 35.1%).

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the revenues of health care
and hygienic products business from the North America, Hong Kong
and other markets were approximately HK$104.8 million, HK$51.9
million and HK$34.6 million (for the year ended 31 December 2020:
approximately HK$147.4 million, HK$86.1 million and HK$185.8
million) respectively, representing 54.8%, 27.1% and 18.1% (for the
year ended 31 December 2020: 35.2%, 20.5% and 44.3%) of the
total health care and hygienic products business segment revenue
respectively.

Health care and hygienic products business segment
revenue by geographical location

2021
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Uncertainties in the global markets

Two years have passed since the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic
in early 2020 and are foreseen to be continuous. It is expected that
the travel restrictions implemented by various countries and regions
will not be fully eliminated due to the recent rise in COVID-19 cases
and the Omicron variant are set to disrupt the recovery and affect
confidence through early 2022. The travel, tourism and aviation
industries will continue to be badly affected, coupled with the
slowdown of global economic growth and the China and U.S. trade
war, the hospitality supplies and OS&E businesses of the Group will
continue to face a huge challenge.

Recovery in tourism industry in the PRC

According to the “China’s Tourism Performance: Review & Forecast
(2021~2022)" (Blue Book of China’s Tourism Economy No. 14) issued
by the China Tourism Academy, the expected domestic tourists and
tourism revenue in the PRC will be 3.98 billion person-times and
RMB3.81 trillion respectively in 2022, with a year-on-year growth
rate of 16% and 27% respectively. The number of inbound and
outbound tourists will expect to increase by 20% year-on-year. The
Group’s hospitality supplies, OS&E business in the PRC are expected
to improve gradually.

Development of the health care and hygienic
product business

The public's awareness of hygiene has greatly increased by the
COVID-19 pandemic, the Group believes that the health care and
hygienic products market is worth expanding with a diversified
product portfolio, which will meet various needs of customers in
different countries and regions. Meanwhile, we try to expand sales
channels to not only retail and online platforms, but also the business
organisations, schools and hospitals to expand the market
penetration. In the face of the unstable market environment, this
diversified business have brought new enlightenment to the Group
under the pandemic situation. Looking ahead, the Group will
continue to strengthen the research and development with new
technologies on our health care and hygienic products, further
develop our “Pasion” brand with high-quality services and brand
effects, and seize the opportunities to promote business growth.

Global concerns in sustainability development

Environment, social and governance of the listed companies started to
play an important role in the investment field. Together with green
and environmental protection regulations to be complied by our hotel
customers all over the world will inevitably prompt the suppliers of
hospitality supplies, and even the entire hospitality supplies industry
to transform enterprises for providing green products. Facing with the
customers’ demand, the Group is committed to becoming the best
partner for customers’ sustainable development and continues to
place effort and resources on developing our green products.
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Competitiveness enhancement and margin
improvement

When the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic is lessening, the
revenue of the Group is expected to rebound. As a result of the
higher production and sales volume, the Group will benefit from cost
efficiency brought into through better economies of scale which
leads to higher profit margin. Along with the recovery of tourism
industry, customers will become relatively less price sensitive which
allows more room for negotiating better pricing. At the same time,
the Group will continue to deepen its strategy of developing the
production base in Kingdom of Cambodia (“Cambodia”) to reduce
its production costs and the impact of the China and U.S. trade war,
improve production efficiency, enhance product structure and
strengthen our procurement ability to source more alternate raw
materials with an aim to increase our cost advantage and to add
more value to our customers. The Group will make good use of its
own resources to enhance our competitiveness. Meanwhile, the
Group will continue to implement a series of prudent and flexible
policies and strategies related to working capital management,
business development and cost control to strengthen financial
conditions and improve profit margins to lay a solid foundation for
the development of the Group.

Continuous exploration of new business
opportunities

The group will continue to improve its competitiveness, consolidate
its core businesses, explore new business opportunities and strive to
expand the market share in the industries, while maintaining a
long-term good relationship with customers and business partners, to
achieve steady innovation and sustainable growth.

The total number of employees of the Group, including short-term
contract workers, was approximately 5,000 as at 31 December 2021.
The employee benefit expenses including Directors’ emoluments were
approximately HK$378.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2021. The remuneration of employees (including the Directors and
senior management) of the Group are generally structured by
reference to market terms and individual merits, which is reviewed
on a regular basis. The Group also provides various other benefits to
designated staff, including discretionary bonus, social insurance or
medical insurance, share option scheme, share award scheme,
continuing education and training programmes. The Group also
launched key performance indicators assessment scheme and
commendation annual award scheme to boost individual
performance and operational efficiency.
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Mr. CHING Chi Fai, aged 60, is an Executive Director and Chairman
of the Company since 2007. He is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee, the Executive Committee and the Investment Committee
of the Company, a member of the Remuneration Committee of the
Company and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. CHING Chi Fai is also a founder of the Group. He has been
responsible for sales and marketing, production of the products and
the formulation of the overall corporate direction and business
strategies of the Group. Mr. CHING Chi Fai has over 30 years of
experience in the hospitality supplies industry. Mr. CHING Chi Keung
is a brother of Mr. CHING Chi Fai and Mr. CHING Tsun Wabh is the
son of Mr. CHING Chi Fai.

Mr. CHING Chi Keung, aged 57, is an Executive Director of the
Company since 2007. He is a member of the Executive Committee of
the Company and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. CHING Chi Keung joined the Group with the founders. He has
been responsible for human resources and administrative matters of
the Group. Mr. CHING Chi Keung has over 30 years of experience in
the hospitality supplies industry. Mr. CHING Chi Fai is a brother of
Mr. CHING Chi Keung and Mr. CHING Tsun Wah is a nephew of
Mr. CHING Chi Keung.

Mr. LIU Zigang, aged 56, is an Executive Director of the Company
since 2007. He is a member of the Executive Committee of the
Company and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. LIU has been responsible for sales and marketing since he joined
the Group in May 1995. He oversees direct sales in the Greater China
Region as well as the Southeast Asia markets. Mr. LIU has over 20
years of experience in the hospitality supplies industry. He obtained a
Master degree of Business Administration in Centenary College of
New Jersey, USA in 2011. Mr. LIU also holds a diploma from
Shenzhen University, the PRC and completed a course on
International Business Management of Tsinghua University organised
by Yangtze Delta Region Institute of Tsinghua University, the PRC.

Mr. CHING Tsun Wah, aged 40, is an Executive Director of the
Company since 2014. He is a member of the Executive Committee of
the Company, a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company and
the business development director of the Group. He joined the Group
since 2006 to assist in production and has been actively involved in
both the business and product development of the Group. Mr. CHING
Tsun Wah has extensive experience in the hospitality supplies
industry. He obtained the Young Industrialist Awards of Hong Kong
by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries in 2020. He graduated in
Seneca College Toronto of Canada in marketing administration in
2003. Mr. CHING Tsun Wah is the son of Mr. CHING Chi Fai and a
nephew of Mr. CHING Chi Keung.
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Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung, aged 49, is an Executive Director of the
Company since 2014. He is the Chief Financial Officer, the Company
Secretary, a member of the Executive Committee and the Investment
Committee of the Company and a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. KEUNG joined the Group in July 2010 and he is
responsible for finance and accounting matters. He has over 20 years of
experience in accounting and financial management. He holds a Bachelor
degree in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University and is
a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

Ms. CHAN Yim Ching, aged 54, is a Non-Executive Director of the
Company since 2015. She is a director of a subsidiary of the
Company. Ms. CHAN joined the Group in 1995 and was responsible
for sales and marketing and oversaw export sales to overseas
markets. She was an Executive Director of the Company from 2007
to 2015. Ms. CHAN has over 30 years of experience in the hospitality
supplies industry. Prior to joining the Group, she worked in several
companies engaged in hospitality supplies business.

Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan, aged 67, is an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company since 2007. He is the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee of the Company. Mr. HUNG has over 30 years of senior
management experience in managing hotel operations and hotel
investments. He was a deputy managing director in 1992 and an
executive director from July 1997 to January 2001 of Top Glory
International Holdings Limited (“Top Glory”), a former Hong Kong
listed company which was privatised in August 2003. During the
period with Top Glory, Mr. HUNG assisted Top Glory to develop and
manage hotels/resorts. In 2005, Mr. HUNG started a hotel
development consultancy service to work with various hotel developers
and prestigious hotel chains on design and project management.

Mr. NG Bo Kwong, aged 65, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company since 13 June 2013. He was a
Non-Executive Director of the Company from 9 July 2007 to 31
December 2012. He is a member of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. NG has over 30 years
of management experience in different industries (including the
hospitality supplies industry). He is the chairman of the International
Quality Service Management Promotion Association and a full
member of the Hong Kong Management Association. He had assisted
a number of medium to large sized enterprises in formulating
company development strategies and establishing management
systems in the areas of sales and marketing, human resources and
production management. Mr. NG is also a guest lecturer of Master of
Business Administration programs and senior executive development
programs of several universities. He had been a director of a number
of non-listed companies and is currently a director of Advance
Management Consultants Limited and Guangzhou Advance Cultural
Events Limited. He received a Master degree of Business
Administration from the University of East Asia and a Doctor degree
of Philosophy in Business Administration from Tarlac State University.
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Mr. SUN Eric Yung Tson, aged 45, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company since 2016. He is a member of the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. He graduated with Bachelor degree of
Commerce in the University of New South Wales, Australia in July
2000. Mr. SUN has been the managing director of Kin Hip Metal &
Plastic Factory, Limited and KINOX Trading Limited since 2006. He
has been dedicated to explore and position the products of KINOX,
an international quality manufacturer of fashionable cookware,
houseware and electrical appliances in household and catering
industries, in emerging and global markets. Mr. SUN is also the
honorary and founding president of Youth Executive Council of
Federation of Hong Kong Industries (“FHKI"), the chairman of The
Hong Kong Plastics Manufacturers Association Limited, the founding
vice chairman and secretary general of Hong Kong 020 E-Commerce
Federation, the vice chairman of Hong Kong Q-Mark Council, the
chairman of The Hong Kong Exporters’ Association and a committee
member of FHKI Pearl River Delta Council. Mr. SUN dedicates his
effort on social responsibilities and practices active roles in different
public services in both Hong Kong and China.

Mr. KWONG Tony Wan Kit, aged 44, is an Independent
Non-Executive Director since 2021. He is the chairman of the Audit
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Investment Committee of the
Company. Mr. KWONG obtained a Bachelor degree of Business
Administration in Accountancy in the City University of Hong Kong.
Mr. KWONG has over 20 years of experience in accounting and
financial management. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. He was the vice president of finance
and management information system of Wise Ally International
Holdings Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the group financial
controller of Defond Holdings (H.K.) Co. Limited and the group
financial controller of Valuetronics Holdings Limited, the shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Singapore Exchange Limited.

Ms. CHAN Yick Ning, aged 59, is the research and development
director of the Group and a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Ms. CHAN is responsible for overseeing various aspects of
our chemical production such as chemical production quality control,
research and development of product formulations, the operations of
the chemical and microbiological laboratory, the performance of the
senior chemists and technicians, quality control and research and
development. Ms. CHAN is also the vice chairman of Compliance
Committee of the Group to provide the technical expertise in vary
aspects to ensure the regulatory compliance and product safety.
Ms. CHAN joined the Group in 2005 and has over 30 years of
experience in cosmetics production and laboratory operation.
Ms. CHAN was awarded a Master of Science degree from University of
Warwick in 2013 and a Diploma in Management Studies jointly by The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University and Hong Kong Management
Association in 1992. Ms. CHAN is also a founder member and the
President of Hong Kong Society of Cosmetic Chemists, which is an
affiliate member of The International Federation of Societies of
Cosmetic Chemists.

The five Executive Directors whose biographical details are included
in the sub-section headed “Executive Directors” above are also
regarded as the senior management of the Company.
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The Directors of Ming Fai International Holdings Limited are pleased
to present their annual report together with the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in manufacturing and trading of hospitality
supplies products, trading of operating supplies and equipment and
manufacturing and trading of health care and hygienic products.
Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries of the
Group are set out in Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out
in the consolidated financial statements on pages 64 to 152 of this
annual report.

Dividend policy

The Board intend to strike a balance between maintaining sufficient
capital to grow the business of the Group and rewarding the
Shareholders. The declaration and payment of any dividends by the
Company would be subject to the Board’s decision and any final
dividend for a financial year of the Company would be subject to the
Shareholders’ approval. The decision to declare or to pay any
dividend, and the amount of any dividends, will depend on the
Group’s earnings, financial condition, cash requirements and
availability, and any other factors the Board may consider relevant.
These factors and the payment of dividends is at the discretion of the
Board and the Board reserves the right to change its plan on any
future payment of dividends. The payment of dividend is also subject
to any restrictions under the laws of Hong Kong and the Cayman
Islands and the Articles of Association of the Company.

Dividend

The Board did not recommend the payment of any interim dividend
for the six months ended 30 June 2021 nor any final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

For ascertaining the eligibility of the Shareholders to attend and vote
at the annual general meeting to be held on Wednesday, 25 May
2022 ("AGM"), the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Friday, 20 May 2022 to Wednesday, 25 May 2022 (both
dates inclusive), during which period no transfer of Shares will be
effected. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all
documents in respect of transfers of Shares accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration
no later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 19 May 2022.
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The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021 is set out in “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 07 to 09 and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 10 to 21 of this
annual report.

Analysis of financial key performance indicators

The financial key performance indicators and analysis of the Group’s
business are set out in “Five Years Financial Summary” on page 05
and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 10 to 21 of
this annual report.

Principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group

Our hospitality supplies products, operating supplies and equipment
and health care and hygienic products are sold to our customers by
direct sales, including hotels and airline operators, or to distributors,
or to other end-users. There is no assurance that such customers will
continue to purchase or maintain their purchase volumes of our
products in the future. In addition, there is no assurance that we will
be able to maintain business relationship with our customers. In the
event that any of our customers ceases to purchase from us or
reduces the purchase volume of orders placed with us and we are
unable to obtain replacement orders, our business and profitability
may be adversely affected.

The principal raw materials used in our production may be subject to
substantial price volatility and periodic shortages caused by external
conditions, such as fluctuations in commodity prices and foreign exchange
rates. There is no guarantee that the costs of raw materials will be stable
in the future. To the extent that we are unable to cover any increased
costs of raw materials by either reduction in other production costs or
increase of our product prices, our profits will be adversely affected.

The operation of the Group is subject to a number of risk factors
distinctive to the respective markets. Default on the part of the
Group's customers, distributors, suppliers and business partners, and
inadequacies or failures of internal processes, people and systems or
other external factors may have various levels of negative impact on
the results of operations. Additionally, accidents may happen despite
systems and policies set up for their prevention, which may lead to
finance loss, litigation or damage in reputation.

The Group is also subject to market risks such as currency
fluctuations, volatility of interest rates, credit risks and liquidity risks
in the normal course of the Group’s businesses. Particulars of
financial risk management of the Group are set out in Note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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We are required to comply with all relevant laws and regulations
promulgated by the governments of the respective jurisdictions.
There is no assurance that the existing laws and regulations will not
be changed or additional or more stringent requirement will not be
imposed, compliance with which may cause us to incur significant
expenditure. Moreover, if we fail to comply with the present or
future laws and regulations, we may be required to pay substantial
fines, suspend production or cease operations. Consequently, our
financial condition, business and reputation may be adversely
affected.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group strives to enhance governance, promote employee
benefits and development, protect the environment and fulfill social
responsibilities in order to achieve sustainable growth. The Group has
complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have significant
impact on the Group.

Environmental policies and performance

The Group is committed to the principle of sustainable development
and fulfill corporate social responsibilities (“CSR") by applying
“commercial morality, the kindness towards people and protecting
environment”. We comply with the laws and respect commercial
morality. We manage our operation based on the legal, compliant
and reasonable basics. We respect human rights, care for public
welfare. We value integrity and achieve win-win situation by
cooperation. We follow our philosophy of respecting morality and
giving back to society. We value resources and promote
environmental protection. Relying on scientific improvements to
reduce impacts on the environment, while we are seeking for
environmental technologies to maintain sustainable development.

The Group believes that CSR is not just about philanthropy, but also
a responsibility towards the community and being able to provide a
good platform to contribute in any way that is meaningful, fulfilling
and sustainable. CSR will remain a prominent matter in the Group's
agenda, and environmental management is always an integral part of
the Group’s business planning and daily operations.

Details of environmental policies and performance of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report 2021”, which is being prepared in
accordance with “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide” contained in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) and will be published on the
HKEXnews website of the Stock Exchange and the Company’s
website.
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Key relationships with employees, customers and
suppliers

The Group recognises the accomplishment of the employees by
providing comprehensive benefit package, career development
opportunities and internal training appropriate to individual needs.
The Group provides a healthy and safe workplace for all employees.

The Group maintains working relationships with suppliers to meet
our customers’ needs in an effective and efficient manner. Our
departments work closely to make sure the tendering and
procurement process is conducted in an open, fair and just manner.
The Group’s requirements and standards are also well-communicated
to suppliers.

The Group values the views and opinions of all customers through
various means and channels to understand customers’ trends and
needs and regularly analyses on customers’ feedback. The Group also
conducts comprehensive tests and checks to ensure that only quality
products and services are offered to the customers.

A summary of the consolidated results and of the consolidated
assets, equity and liabilities of the Group for the last five years is set
out in “Five Years Financial Summary” on page 05 of this annual
report.

The Group did not issue any Shares and debentures during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 67 and
Notes 19 and 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2021, distributable reserves of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$1,018,472,000.

No pre-emptive rights exist under the Company’s Articles of
Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, in which the
Company incorporated.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2021, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any listed
securities of the Company.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to
the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHING Chi Fai (Chairman)
Mr. CHING Chi Keung

Mr. LIU Zigang

Mr. CHING Tsun Wah

Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung

Non-Executive Director

Ms. CHAN Yim Ching

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan

Mr. MA Chun Fung Horace (resigned on 13 December 2021)
Mr. NG Bo Kwong

Mr. SUN Eric Yung Tson

Mr. KWONG Tony Wan Kit (appointed on 14 December 2021)

In accordance with Article 130 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Messrs. CHING Chi Keung, LIU Zigang, CHING Tsun Wah
and Ms. CHAN Yim Ching will retire from office at the AGM and,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

In accordance with Articles 114 and 115 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. KWONG Tony Wan Kit was appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director by the Board on 14 December
2021, will hold office until the AGM and, being eligible, will offer
himself for re-election at the AGM.

Confirmation of independence of Independent
Non-Executive Directors

The Company has received from each Independent Non-Executive
Director an annual written confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
that all the Independent Non-Executive Directors are independent.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
ExE8S (&)

Disclosure of information of Directors under Rule
13.51(B)(1) of the Listing Rules

With effect from 1 November 2021, Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung resigned
as an independent non-executive director of Acme International
Holdings Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange.

With effect from 1 January 2022, Mr. SUN Eric Yung Tson was
re-designated from vice chairman to chairman of The Hong Kong
Exporters’ Association.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM has a service contract which is not determinable
by the employer within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, none of the Directors has any
interest in any business apart from the Group’s business, which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in which a
Director or an entity connected with a Director had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year ended 31 December 2021.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than Directors’ service contracts and employment contracts
with the Group's senior management in full-time employment, no
contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or in existence during the year ended 31 December
2021.
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A permitted indemnity provision was in force during the year ended
31 December 2021 and up to the date of this report.

Pursuant to the Company's Articles of Association, every Director
shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him/her as a
Director in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in
which judgement is given in his/her favour, or in which he/she is
acquitted. There is appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the directors and officers of the Group.

New VIE Structure

As disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 22 October
2017 and 19 January 2018 (the “Announcements”), due to
applicable laws and regulatory prohibitions on owning land and real
properties in Cambodia by foreign ownership, the Group had in place
a series of contractual arrangements to establish the VIE Structure
with the Local Partner (i.e. an assistant solicitor of the Cambodia
legal adviser to the Company, who is a Cambodian citizen and an
independent third party) that were designed to allow the Company
to exercise control over the operations of the Landholding Company
(i.e. a company incorporated under the laws of Cambodia and owned
as to 49% by Ming Fai Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, and 51% by the Local Partner to hold the Land and
Properties) and enjoy the economic benefits in the Land and
Properties. Unless otherwise specified, capitalised terms used herein
shall have the same meanings as defined in the Announcements.

On 16 June 2021, the relevant parties entered into the following
documents to change one of the registered shareholders of the
Landholding Company from the Local Partner to Mr. CHING Tsun
Wah, an Executive Director (the “Change of Local Partner”):

(1) the Termination Agreement, pursuant to which Ming Fai
Holdings Limited and the Local Partner agreed the termination
of the aforesaid contractual arrangements between the Group
and the Local Partner;

(2) the Transfer Documents, pursuant to which the Local Partner
transferred 51% of equity interests of the Landholding
Company to Mr. CHING Tsun Wah; and

(3) the New Structured Documents (collectively, the New Loan
Agreement, the New Power of Attorney, the New Blank
Shareholders’ Resolution, the New Blank Share Transfer
Documents, the New Share Pledge Agreement, the New Call
Option Agreement and the New Shareholders’ Agreement),
pursuant to which the Group established the New VIE
Structure, which was on substantially the same terms as those
in place under the VIE Structure, save as to the identity of the
Local Partner.
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Summary of the principal terms of the New Structured
Documents:

Pursuant to which Ming Fai Holdings Limited as the
lender and Mr. CHING Tsun Wah as the borrower for
an interest-free loan of US$2,500,000 from the date of
signing the New Loan Agreement until the time when
it is terminated for the sole purpose of payment for the
acquisition of 51% of the equity interests of the
Landholding Company. Mr. CHING Tsun Wah shall only
repay the loan, including any, taxes, charges,
indemnities, fees, costs and any expenses and all
obligations and liabilities in relation to the loan under
the New Loan Agreement to Ming Fai Holdings Limited
by way of transferring 51% of the equity interests of
the Landholding Company held by Mr. CHING Tsun
Wah, and any and all shares held by Mr. CHING Tsun
Wah which accounts for 51% of the equity interests of
the Landholding Company (the “Relevant Shares”) to
Ming Fai Holdings Limited or to any other person to be
designated by Ming Fai Holdings Limited.

Mr. CHING Tsun Wah, the Landholding Company and
the Company are the parties, pursuant to which
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah has granted a general and
irrevocable power of attorney and proxy to the
Directors and their successors (including a liquidator
replacing the Directors) (the "Attorneys”) or its
appointees over all business activities concerning and
his right to vote as the ultimate shareholder of the
Landholding Company and has given the Attorneys or
its appointees the authority and rights to vote as his
proxy at any shareholders’ meeting and board meeting
to deal with all aspects of the management and
operations of the Landholding Company including, but
not limited to, the disposition or acquisition of assets,
appointment of officers and employees, day-to-day
business decisions, maintenance of records, declaration
of profits, signing minutes, filing documents with the
relevant companies registry, and other issues
concerning the Landholding Company which are
allowable by laws in force, and, for and on behalf of
Ming Fai Holdings Limited and as its designated person,
to collect all dividends or profit declared to him as a
shareholder of the Landholding Company, which are to
be transferred and assigned only to Ming Fai Holdings
Limited pursuant to the New Shareholders’ Agreement.
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Mr. Ching Tsun Wah has pre-signed and thumb-printed
a blank shareholders’ resolution for the approval of the
disposal of any immovable property(ies) of the
Landholding Company.

Mr. Ching Tsun Wah has pre-signed the blank share
transfer documents that can be completed and filed
with the Ministry of Commerce of Cambodia in relation
to the Relevant Shares in the Landholding Company
held by Mr. Ching Tsun Wah.

Pursuant to which Ming Fai Holdings Limited as pledgee
and Mr. CHING Tsun Wah as pledgor and that
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah has pledged the Relevant Shares,
including all dividends, interest or other income, paid
or payable after the date of the New Share Pledge
Agreement in respect of any of the Relevant Shares,
together with any and all rights and benefits that have
been created or exist with respect to the Relevant
Shares or any other shares in Mr. Ching Tsun Wah or
any other device in the nature of a security issued or
suffered by Mr. Ching Tsun Wah, as security to
guarantee the performance of the obligations and
liabilities which is owing to Ming Fai Holdings Limited
by Mr. Ching Tsun Wah pursuant to the New Loan
Agreement. Mr. Ching Tsun Wah has undertaken not
to dispose, transfer or otherwise encumber any right
attaching to shares which are pledged as Relevant
Shares without prior written approval from Ming Fai
Holdings Limited.

Ming Fai Holdings Limited, Mr. CHING Tsun Wah and
the Landholding Company are the parties, pursuant to
which the Landholding Company irrevocably granted
the exclusive right to Ming Fai Holdings Limited or its
assignees, from the date of signing of the New Call
Option Agreement indefinitely until all assets of the
Landholding Company are transferred to Ming Fai
Holdings Limited or its assignees and registration
process required thereafter has been completed with
the relevant local authorities, to purchase all or part of
the assets of the Landholding Company at market
value, to the maximum extent allowed by the then
applicable Cambodian laws and regulations. Each of
the Landholding Company and Mr. Ching Tsun Wah
has undertaken to return to Ming Fai Holdings Limited
any consideration it received in the event that Ming Fai
Holdings Limited exercises such option to acquire the
assets of the Landholding Company.
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Pursuant to which Ming Fai Holdings Limited and
Mr. Ching Tsun Wah agreed on the rights and
obligations of them as shareholders of the Landholding
Company and also, restrictions against Mr. Ching Tsun
Wah with respect of, among other things, the disposal
of the Relevant Shares, distribution of dividends and
management and operation of the Landholding
Company, to parties other than Ming Fai Holdings
Limited or to any other person to be designated by
Ming Fai Holdings Limited, for three years commencing
from the date of the New Shareholders’ Agreement. If
both parties to the New Shareholders’ Agreement
agree, the term of the New Shareholders’ Agreement
may be renewed by writing every three years, subject
to the compliance with the Listing Rules.

If there are any dividends, profits, benefits or interests
declared in relation to the interests of Mr. CHING Tsun
Wah as a shareholder in the Landholding Company, he
can only transfer and assign these interests to Ming Fai
Holdings Limited or to any other person to be designated
by Ming Fai Holdings Limited, and ultimately, the
Company.

Upon the Change of Local Partner, Ming Fai Holdings Limited and
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah were the shareholders of the Landholding
Company holding its equity interest as to 49% and 51%,
respectively. The Landholding Company remained as if it was a
subsidiary of the Company and its financial results would continue to
be accounted for and consolidated in the accounts of the Group. The
Landholding Company is not engaged in any business activities other
than holding a land parcel and the properties on the land parcel and
for property investment.

The reasons for replacing the Local Partner with Mr. CHING Tsun
Wah as one of the shareholders of the Landholding Company was
because Mr. CHING Tsun Wah became a Cambodian citizen and his
involvement in the Group’s hospitality supplies business in Cambodia
significantly increased. Mr. CHING Tsun Wah has also developed
necessary and adequate knowledge and familiarity with the rules and
regulations, and expertise in the operations of the Group’s hospitality
supplies business in Cambodia through his involvement in the
business since 2018. The Group’s business in Cambodia has also
been maturing and has become largely stable overtime. The Group's
management has also gained expertise overtime from its operations
in Cambodia.
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In consideration of the foregoing, the Change of Local Partner (i)
would better safeguard the interests of the Company in the
Landholding Company by having a Director as a shareholder of the
Landholding Company instead of the Local Partner; and (ii)
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah would be a more suitable candidate to hold
the 51% shareholding in the Landholding Company than the Local
Partner as he has greater familiarity with the Group and its business.

Mr. Ching Tsun Wah, being the Executive Director, is a connected
person of the Company under Rule 14A.07(1) of the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under the New Structured
Documents, in particular, the New Loan Agreement and the New
Shareholders’ Agreement which provides for the transfer and
assignment of dividends, profits, benefits or interests by Mr. Ching
Tsun Wah to Ming Fai Holdings Limited, constitute a connected
transaction and a continuing connected transaction of the Company,
respectively, under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As the highest of all of the applicable percentage ratios in respect of
the New Loan Agreement is more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the
New Loan Agreement is subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements but is exempt from the circular and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

As none of the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the transfer
and assignment of dividends, profits, benefits or interests by
Mr. Ching Tsun Wah to Ming Fai Holdings Limited under the New
Shareholders’ Agreement exceeds 5% and the total annual amount
payable to Ming Fai Holdings Limited is below HK$3 million, it is fully
exempted from the relevant requirements of reporting,
announcement, circular and independent shareholders’ approval
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Risks and limitations relating to the New VIE Structure:

o Ming Fai Holdings Limited may bear economic risks as the
shareholder of the Landholding Company, and the Group’s
financial performance may be adversely affected and financial
support may need to be provided if the Landholding Company
suffers losses.

o The New Structured Documents may not be as effective as
direct ownership in providing control over the Landholding
Company if Mr. CHING Tsun Wah fails to perform his
obligations under the New Structured Documents or otherwise
have disputes with the Group.
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o It is unforeseeable that there may be change of interpretation
and determination by the Cambodian government on the
compliance of the arrangement contemplated by the New
Structured Documents with Cambodian laws and regulations.

o Potential conflicts of interests or potential disputes may arise
due to dual roles for Mr. CHING Tsun Wah as a shareholder of
the Landholding Company and an Executive Director.

o The Company does not maintain an insurance policy to cover
the risks relating to arrangement under the New VIE Structure.

In order to mitigate the risks, the Board will review and monitor the
overall compliance of the New VIE Structure from time to time. In
case if there is any major issues arising from the implementation and
compliance with the New VIE Structure or any regulatory enquiries
from governmental authorities, the Company will engage external
legal advisers and other professional advisers as appropriate.

Details of the New VIE Structure was set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 16 June 2021.

Related Party Transactions

Except the rental charged by Ming Fai Plastic Industrial Company to
the Group constitute continuing connected transactions, which are
fully exempted from the relevant requirements of reporting,
announcement, circular and independent shareholders’ approval
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, none of the other significant
related party transactions entered into by the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2021 set out in Note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors in shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporation (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the “"Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers” (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules were as follows:
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Long positions in Shares and underlying Shares

BERGEE
Corporate
Personal Family Interests
Interests Interests (interests of
(beneficial (interests controlled
Name of Directors owner) of spouse) corporation)
BAER RIRRER ZEER
EENE (BREAAN) (BEER) (TELEER)
Mr. CHING Chi Fai 17,444,000 - 197,666,200
BEBELE (Notes 1 & 2)
(HaF1k2)
Mr. CHING Chi Keung 4,000,000 - 32,499,600
RERLE (Note 2)
(Hfiz2)
l\/lr LIU Z|g£ang 4,000,000 - 20,057,200
217 W% (Note 3)
(H1iE3)
Mr. C“IN Tsun Wah 3,734,000 775,000 -
2 (Note 4)
(Hiit4)
Ms. CHAN Yim Ching - - 32,499,600
PR s L+ (Note 2)
(HfiE2)
Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan 600,000 - -
FLEBH A
Mr. Ng Bo Kwong 600,000 - -
RRERNEE
Notes: B
1. 165,166,600 Shares were held by Prosper Well International Limited, 1.
which was wholly-owned by Mr. CHING Chi Fai.
2. 32,499,600 Shares were held by Targetwise Trading Limited, which was 2.

owned as to 50%,

Number of Shares held

Ms. CHAN Yim Ching and Mr. CHING Chi Fai respectively.

19.23% and 30.77% by Mr. CHING Chi Keung,

3. 20,057,200 Shares were held by Favour Power Limited, which was 3.
wholly-owned by Mr. LIU Zigang.

4. 775,000 Shares were held by Ms. SO Wai Yin Tracy, the spouse of 4.

Mr. CHING Tsun Wah.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021,
Directors had any interest or short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated

none of the

corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded 15

in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant

to the Model Code.

=t+—RH"

Total

@

EI‘I_'

215,110,200

36,499,600

24,057,200

4,509,000

32,499,600

600,000

600,000

REROREBROD2EFR

Approximate
percentage of
issued Shares
(734,262,697
Shares)

as at

31 December 2021
R=ZB=—-F
+=ZA=+—-8H
ERTRG
(734,262,6978)
ZHBHBE D

29.30%

4.97%

3.28%

0.61%

4.43%

0.08%

0.08%

165,166,600/% %15 F Prosper Well International

Limited5 A - M2

o

RREEEEEZER

32,499,600 A% 17 EETargetwise Trading

Limited#¥ & » Mz A
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As at 31 December 2021, so far as it was known by or otherwise
notified by any Director, the interests and short positions of the
substantial shareholders and other persons (other than a Director), in
Shares and underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

RZB_—F+-_A=+—RH #HEMES
PR SR EARL M A PTBA - RIRE K
Hi ALt (BB R RERERND
RECAREREZ MBI E336(FBET
ENECHP 2 EEARNT

Long positions in Shares RO ZHAE
Number of Shares held
BERNOEE
Approximate
percentage of
Corporate issued Shares
Personal Family Corporate Interests (734,262,697
Interests Interests Interests  (interests of Shares)
(beneficial (interests (beneficial controlled as at
Name owner) of spouse) owner)  corporation) Total 31 December 2021
RZBZ-§
+ZB=1-H
ERTRS
BA%R RkER EEER ZEER (734,262,6971)
%R/ 1% (BREFA) (RE#ER) (BREAA) (REiIEER) @t ZBAES
Prosper Well International Limited (Note 1) - - 165,166,600 - 165,166,600 22.49%
Prosper Well International Limited (#777)
Ms. LO Kit Ling (Note 1) - 215,110,200 - - 215,110,200 29.30%
BERR &L (W)
Mr. David Michael WEBB (Note 2) 44,625,000 - - 66,174,000 110,799,000 15.08%
David Michael WEBB% 4 (#7:22)
Preferable Situation Assets Limited (Note 2) - - 66,174,000 - 66,174,000 9.01%
Preferable Situation Assets Limited (#722)
Notes: Wi -
1. 165,166,600 Shares were held by Prosper Well International Limited, 1. 165,166,6000% A% {7 F Prosper Well International

which was wholly-owned by Mr. CHING Chi Fai (an Executive Director and
the Chairman of the Company). 32,499,600 Shares were held by
Targetwise Trading Limited, which was owned as to 30.77% by Mr. CHING
Chi Fai. Mr. CHING Chi Fai also beneficially held 17,444,000 Shares.
Ms. LO Kit Ling, being the spouse of Mr. CHING Chi Fai, was deemed to
be interested in the 215,110,200 Shares in which Mr. CHING Chi Fai
interested.
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2. Based on the disclosure of interests notices with the date of relevant event
on 3 December 2021 received by the Company, 66,174,000 Shares were
held by Preferable Situation Assets Limited, which was wholly-owned by
Mr. David Michael WEBB, and Mr. David Michael WEBB beneficially held
44,625,000 Shares. Save as disclosed above, no further respective
disclosure of interests notices of Mr. David Michael WEBB and Preferable
Situation Assets Limited with the date of relevant event on or before 31
December 2021 were received by the Company.

Save as disclosed above and in the section headed “Directors’
interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations” of this
report, as at 31 December 2021, so far as it was known by or
otherwise notified by any Director, none of the substantial
shareholders and other persons (other than a Director), had any
interest or short positions in Shares and underlying Shares as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO.

The Company has conditionally adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) on 5 October 2007. Particulars of
movements in the share options during the year ended 31 December
2021 were as follows:

2. RIE AR AU 'Jﬁ?ﬁ$1iﬁﬁﬁi% T —
F+_A=ZB2E=mBFEFEBAM  Preferable
Situation Assets Limited (FgDavid Michael
WEBB%: =2 E# H) 5 666,174,0008% AR
7+ MDavid Michael WEBB £ MEX#EHH

44,625,00008 & 15 < bR JA E# B & 5 - K

N & # 2 Y BDavid Michael WEBB%E 4

Preferable Situation Assets Limited& B A
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ATz E— R B@E -

BEXRABREEERNARA R E B
RE B - AR D R AE R R
Bl —EmEEEN RZB-_—F+=A
=t—H REAESAATHBEFAEA
TAMBA BEARREEBAL (ES
BR M) 7 B fn R AR BE B 10 o BB R RS AR
BREAS LB EGDIE336KATHEFHERL
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Number of share options

BREXA
Outstanding Outstanding
as at Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed as at
Date of Exercise Exercise 1 January during during during during 31 December
Grantee grant period Price 2021 the year the year the year the year 2021
R=B=-% R=B=-%
—A-H TZB=+-H
REA RHAH T ﬁﬁ% e ERRH ERfTR ERE# ERER ESi:d
HK:
A
Directors
EZ
Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung ~ 04-09-2012 09-09-2012 to 08-09-2021 0.62 579,000 = = = 579,000 =
ZEEEE -8 ZE-ZfAANRE
NAEA :2: FRANE
04-09-2012 09-09-2013 to 08-09-2021 0.62 579,000 - - - 579,000 -
- ZEZ-ZEAANBEE
N AMA ZE--FnANR
Employees
E5
In aggregate 04-09-2012 09-09-2012 to 08-09-2021 0.62 844,000 - - - 844,000 -
At “E--fF —Z-—FAAARE
AAMA —E--%nANA
04-09-2012 09-09-2013 to 08-09-2021 0.62 844,000 - - - 844,000 -
-  ZZ-ZfAANRE
N AMA —Z--%nANA
04-09-2012  04-09-2013 to 03-09-2022 0.62 225,000 - - - - 225,000
2% CZZ-=FNAMARZE
N AMA “T--FAA=H
04-09-2012 04-09-2014 to 03-09-2022 0.62 337,000 = = = = 337,000
2 Z-WMENAAMAE
hAmA :%‘\:*ﬁhﬂiﬁ
Total 3,408,000 - - - 2,846,000 562,000

PEEEERERAT o =%



The following is a summary of the principal terms of the rules of the
Share Option Scheme:

(1)

(2)

(3)

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme was to enable the
Board to grant options to selected employees (whether full
time or part time, including the Directors) of any member of
the Group (the “Eligible Persons”) as incentives or rewards for
their contribution or potential contribution to the Group.

The terms of the Share Option Scheme provided that in
granting options under the Share Option Scheme, the Board
was entitled to determine whether there is any minimum
holding period, and whether there is any performance target
which must be achieved, before an option granted under the
Share Option Scheme is exercised. The Board was also entitled
to determine the option price per Share payable on the
exercise of an option (the “Exercise Price”) according to the
terms of the Share Option Scheme. Such terms, together with
the incentives that the option would bring about, the Board
believed, would serve the purpose of the Share Option
Scheme.

Period of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme was effective during the period of
ten years commencing on 2 November 2007 (the date on
which the Share Option Scheme become unconditional) and
the Share Option Scheme was expired on 1 November 2017.
On expiry of the Share Option Scheme, no further option shall
be granted but in all other respects the provisions of the Share
Options Scheme shall remain in force. All options granted and
accepted prior to such expiry shall continue to be valid and
exercisable in accordance with their terms and terms of the
Share Option Scheme.

Basis of eligibility

The Board at its absolute discretion and on such terms as it
might think fit, granted options to any Eligible Person to
subscribe at the Exercise Price for such number of Shares as
determined in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme.

The basis of eligibility of any of the Eligible Persons to the
grant of options were determined by the Board on the basis of
his contribution or potential contribution to the development
and growth of the Group.
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(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

Price for subscription of Shares

The Exercise Price was determined by the Board at the higher of:

(a) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant of the options which must be a business
day; and

(b) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant, provided that the Exercise Price shall in
no event be less than the nominal amount of one
Share.

Acceptance of offers

The amount payable to the Company as acceptance of the
offer for the grant of an option was HK$1.

Maximum number of Shares

The maximum number of Shares which might be issued upon
the exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (excluding, for this purpose, options which have
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme or any other share option schemes of the Company)
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue on
the listing date (i.e. 2 November 2007) (the “Scheme Limit").

The Scheme Limit could be refreshed at any time subject to
Shareholders’ approval provided that such limit as refreshed
should not exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date
of approval of the renewed limit. Share options previously
granted under the Share Option Scheme (including those
outstanding, cancelled, lapsed or exercised) would not be
counted for the purpose of calculating the Scheme Limit as
refreshed. On 23 May 2013, the refreshment of the Scheme
Limit was approved by the Shareholders at the annual general
meeting. As at the date of this annual report, the number of
Shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme is
562,000 Shares which represents approximately 0.08% of the
total number of issued Shares.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Person

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
the exercise of options granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
to any Eligible Person (including cancelled, exercised and
outstanding options), in any 12-month period should not
exceed 1% of the Shares in issue from time to time.

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)
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On 23 September 2016, the Company adopted the Share Award
Scheme in which the Group’s employees, directors, consultants or
advisers will be entitled to participate. During the year ended 31
December 2021, no Shares were acquired from the market by the
independent trustee (Bank of Communications Trustee Limited),
which is independent and not connected with the Company. No
Shares have been granted to eligible persons under the Share Award
Scheme up to the date of this report.

The objectives of the Share Award Scheme are (i) to recognise the
contributions by certain eligible persons; and (ii) to offer suitable
incentives to attract and retain targeted talents and personnel for the
continuance of operations and future development of the Group.

The Share Award Scheme shall be subject to the administration of
the Board and the independent trustee in accordance with the
scheme rules and the trust deed of the Share Award Scheme. Subject
to any early termination as may be determined by the Board, the
Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for a term of ten
years commencing on its adoption date (i.e. 23 September 2016).

The Board shall not make any further award of awarded Shares
which will result in the nominal value of the Shares awarded by the
Board under the Share Award Scheme exceeding 5% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time. The maximum
number of Shares which may be awarded to a selected person under
the Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the issued share
capital of the Company from time to time.

Details of the Share Award Scheme were set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 23 September 2016.

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option Scheme” and
“Share Award Scheme” of this report, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate at the
end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31 December
2021.
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Save as disclosed in Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements,
no contract of significance between the Company or any of its
subsidiaries and a controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries;
nor for the provision of services to the Company or any of its
subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries were
entered into or subsisted during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option Scheme” and
“Share Award Scheme” of this report, no equity-linked agreement
was entered into or subsisted during the year ended 31 December
2021.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The aggregate revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total number of issued Shares was held by the public as
at the date of this report.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group made
charitable donations amounting to approximately HK$739,000.

The Company’s auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers who shall retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the AGM.

On behalf of the Board

CHING Chi Fai
Chairman
Hong Kong, 24 March 2022
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The Company is dedicated to maintaining and ensuring high
standards of corporate governance practices. The corporate
governance principles of the Company emphasise accountability and
transparency and are adopted in the best interest of the Company
and the Shareholders. The Board reviews its corporate governance
practices from time to time in order to meet the rising expectations
of the Shareholders and to fulfill its commitment to excellence in
corporate governance.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board has reviewed
its policies and practices on corporate governance, and policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has complied
with all the code provisions in the “Corporate Governance Code”
(the “CG Code"”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules,
except the deviation of the followings:

o Code provision A.2.1: the Board has not appointed an
individual to the post of chief executive officer up to the date
of this report and the role of the chief executive officer has
been performed collectively by all the Executive Directors,
including the Chairman of the Company. The Board considers
that this arrangement allows contributions from all Executive
Directors with different expertise and is beneficial to the
continuity of the Company’s policies and strategies.

o Code provision E.1.2: with the COVID-19 pandemic and the
travel restrictions in place in the PRC and Hong Kong
respectively, the Chairman of the Board did not attend the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 26 May
2021.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this
report, the Board comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHING Chi Fai (Chairman)
Mr. CHING Chi Keung

Mr. LIU Zigang

Mr. CHING Tsun Wah

Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung

Non-Executive Director

Ms. CHAN Yim Ching

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan

Mr. MA Chun Fung Horace
(resigned on 13 December 2021)

Mr. NG Bo Kwong

Mr. SUN Eric Yung Tson

Mr. KWONG Tony Wan Kit
(appointed on 14 December 2021)

Board responsibilities and delegation

The Board collectively determines the overall strategies of the
Company and monitors performance and risks in pursuit of the
strategic objectives of the Company. Day-to-day management of the
Company is delegated to the Executive Directors or the senior
management in charge of each division. All Directors (including
Non-Executive Director and Independent Non-Executive Directors)
have been consulted on all major and material matters of the Group.

The Board has delegated some of its function to the Board
committees, details of which are set out in the section headed
“Board Committees” below. Matters specifically reserved for the
Board, including convening Shareholders’ meetings, implementing
the Shareholders’ resolutions, determining the Group’s business
plans and strategies, formulating the Group’s annual budget and
final accounts, formulating proposals for dividend and bonus
distributions and for increase or reduction of share capital,
determining the Group’s corporate structure, formulating investment
plans as well as exercising other powers, functions and duties as
conferred by the Articles of Association of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
TRERHEE (B)

The attendance of the Directors at Board meetings, committee
meetings and annual general meeting of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2021 were as follows:
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Number of meetings attended/held
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Audit ~ Nomination Remuneration Executive Investment Annual
Board Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
BZe  ENZEE  R4ZE®  EHMZEe  Hf1ZE€  REZSe RE
g% EE EE EE EE EE ] AELE
Executive Directors HrEs
Mr. CHING Chi ai BEELE m - 0 3. 44 1 on
Mr. CHING Chi Keung RERAE n = = = 44 = i
Mr. LIU Zigang AFEEE n - - - 44 = on
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah BkERE 1L - - - 44 - /1
Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung ZEERE m - - - 44 i i
Non-Executive Director FunEs
Ms. CHAN Yim Ching BREET+ 7 - - - _ _ "
Independent Non-Executive Directors B FHTES
Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan Hmkas n B - ElE! = = on
Mr. MA Chun Fung Horace SRtk
(resigned on 13 December 2021) (R=B--%
t-A+ZHEE) 6/6 2 n 22 - n n
Mr. NG Bo Kwong REEEE mn 33 - 33 - - [l
Mr. SUN Eric Yung Tson BaEiE m 33 0N 33 - - i
Mr. KWONG Tony Wan Kit Britrk
(appointed on 14 December 2021) (R-EB=-%
TZATHAEZE) 1l 11 = - . . _

Each Executive Director has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years while each Non-Executive Director
and Independent Non-Executive Director has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of one year. All the
aforesaid service contracts or letters of appointment may be
terminated by either party giving written notice in accordance with
the terms of service contracts or letters of appointment. All the
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meetings of the Company in accordance with the
Articles of Association of the Company.
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The Company has appointed sufficient number of Independent
Non-Executive Directors in accordance to the requirements of the
Listing Rules and one of them has appropriate accounting
professional qualifications. The Company has received from each
Independent Non-Executive Director an annual written confirmation
of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Directors are of the view that all Independent Non-Executive Directors
meet the independence requirements as set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

Mr. CHING Chi Fai (the Chairman of the Company and an Executive
Director) and Mr. CHING Chi Keung (Executive Director) are brothers.
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah (Executive Director) is the son of Mr. CHING
Chi Fai and a nephew of Mr. CHING Chi Keung.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, seven Board meetings
were held. Minutes of the Board meetings are being kept by the
Company Secretary of the Company and are available for inspection
by the Directors.

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Executive Committee
and the Investment Committee.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all the Independent Non-Executive
Directors. Mr. KWONG Tony Wan Kit was appointed on 14 December
2021 and Mr. MA Chun Fung Horace resigned on 13 December 2021
as the Chairman of the Audit Committee, who have appropriate
accounting professional qualifications and relevant expertise. Messrs.
HUNG Kam Hung Allan, NG Bo Kwong and SUN Eric Yung Tson are
members of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee held three
meetings during the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Audit Committee is responsible for assisting the Board in
fulfilling its audit duties through the review and supervision of the
Group’s financial reporting system, risk management system and
internal control procedures, details of responsibilities are set out in
the terms of reference of the Audit Committee, which are published
on the HKEXnews website of the Stock Exchange and the website of
the Company.
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The work performed by the Audit Committee during the year ended
31 December 2021 are summarised below:

reviewed the interim and annual results, the relevant
statements and reports of the Group, the significant financial
reporting judgements, in order to monitor the integrity and
whether in accordance with the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group and the applicable accounting
standard;

reviewed the external auditor’s audit plan and terms of
engagement;

reviewed management letter and any materials queries raised
by the external auditor to the management in relation to the
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control
and management’s responses;

reviewed the key audit matters and discussed with external
auditor and the management;

reviewed the independency and objectivity of the external
auditor, the effectiveness of audit process and the non-audit
service fee payable to the external auditor;

recommended to the Board the re-appointment of the external
auditor and the audit fee payable to the external auditor for
Shareholders’ approval at the annual general meeting;

reviewed the effectiveness of financial control, risk management
and internal control systems involving financial, operational and
compliance control and internal audit function of the Group;

reviewed the internal audit report prepared by the internal
auditor and the management’s responses to the findings by
the internal audit function;

considered and reviewed the proposals of internal audit plan;
and

reviewed the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, budget of the Group’s financial reporting and
internal audit functions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021, the fees payable
by the Company to the external auditor of the Company,
PricewaterhouseCoopers for audit services was HK$2,500,000 and
no non-audit service was provided.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises one Executive Director,
Mr. CHING Chi Fai as the Chairman and two Independent
Non-Executive Directors as members, namely Messrs. SUN Eric Yung
Tson and KWONG Tony Wan Kit. Mr. KWONG Tony Wan Kit was
appointed on 14 December 2021 and Mr. MA Chun Fung Horace
resigned on 13 December 2021 as a member of the Nomination
Committee. The Nomination Committee held two meetings during
the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for the identification and
recommendation to the Board of possible appointees as Directors,
making recommendations to the Board on matters relating to
appointment or re-appointment of Directors, succession planning of
Directors and assessing the independence of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors, details of responsibilities are set out in the
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee, which are
published on the HKEXnews website of the Stock Exchange and the
website of the Company.

The work performed by the Nomination Committee during the year
ended 31 December 2021 are summarised below:

. reviewed the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity) of the Board;

o recommended to the Board regarding the re-election of
directors for Shareholders’ approval at the annual general
meeting; and

o assessed the independence of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors.
o considered the resignation of Mr. MA Chun Fung Horace and

the appointment of Mr. KWONG Tony Wan Kit as an
Independent Non-Executive Director, the Chairman of the
Audit Committee and a member of each of the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Investment
Committee.
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Selection criteria

The Nomination Committee would assess the suitability of a proposed
candidate based on a number of factors, including but not limited to:

o character and integrity;

o professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience
that are relevant to the Group’s business and corporate
strategy;

o potential time commitment to discharge duties as a Director

and/or committee member and other directorships and
significant commitments;

o Board diversity policy and any measurable objectives adopted
for achieving the Board'’s diversity;

o relevant requirements as stipulated under the Listing Rules,
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, other applicable laws
and regulations in Hong Kong and the Cayman Islands and
the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company;

o independence requirements for the Independent Non-Executive
Directors.

Appointment of Director(s)

o The Nomination Committee shall upon receipt of the
biographical details of the proposed candidate(s), evaluate the
candidate(s) based on the selection criteria of the nomination
policy to determine his/her qualification as a Director and
make recommendation for the Board’s consideration. The
selected individual(s) will be subject to re-election by
Shareholders at the next general meeting of the Company
after his/her initial appointment as Director(s) in accordance
with the Company’s Articles of Association.

o For any person as nominated by a Shareholder for election as
a Director at a general meeting of the Company, the
qualification of the candidate(s) shall be evaluated first by the
Nomination Committee and then by the Board based on the
selection criteria of the nomination policy. The Board shall
make recommendation to the Shareholders in respect of such
proposed election as Director(s) at the general meeting of the
Company.
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Re-election of Director(s)

o The Nomination Committee shall review and determine
whether the retiring Director(s) continue to meet the selection
criteria of the nomination policy and make recommendation
for the Board’'s consideration. The Board shall then make
recommendation to the Shareholders in respect of the
proposed re-election of Director(s) at the general meeting.

The Board diversity policy of the Company setting out the approach
to diversity on the Board. The Company continuously seeks to
enhance its effectiveness and to maintain the highest standards of
corporate governance and recognise diversity at Board level as an
essential element in maintaining a competitive advantage, Board
diversity has been considered from a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The Nomination Committee and the Board will also take into
account factors based on the Group’s business model and specific
needs from time to time. The ultimate decision will be based on merit
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises one Executive Director,
Mr. CHING Chi Fai as member and all the Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan as the Chairman and
Messrs. NG Bo Kwong, SUN Eric Yung Tson and KWONG Tony Wan
Kit as members. Mr. KWONG Tony Wan Kit was appointed on 14
December 2021 and Mr. MA Chun Fung Horace resigned on 13
December 2021 as a member of the Remuneration Committee. The
Remuneration Committee held three meetings during the year ended
31 December 2021.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on the Group’s remuneration policy and structure, the
remuneration packages of the Executive Directors and senior management,
and the remuneration of Non-Executive Director and Independent
Non-Executive Directors, details of responsibilities are set out in the terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee, which are published on the
HKEXnews website of the Stock Exchange and the website of the
Company.
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The work performed by the Remuneration Committee during the year FHMZE &
ended 31 December 2021 are summarised below: HItEERE

o considered and reviewed the remuneration packages, including e
the discretionary bonus, and the performance, time commitment
and responsibilities of each Executive Director and the senior
management, with reference to the prevailing market conditions,
and recommended for the Board's approval;

o considered and reviewed the Group’s remuneration policy; e
and
o reviewed the respective letter of appointment and director’'s e

fee of each Non-Executive Director and Independent
Non-Executive Director, including the letter of appointment
and director’s fee of Mr. KWONG Tony Wan Kit, who was
appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director on 14
December 2021, and recommended for the Board’s approval.
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The emoluments of the five Executive Directors who are also FAMNHITESE (MARAANSREEAR)
regarded as the senior management of the Company are disclosed in B & B4R & B IS SRR M 5538 &

Note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

The emolument of the senior management other than the five #Z—

E_—F+A=1T—BHILFERD

Executive Directors by band for the year ended 31 December 2021 is EHREI P SREEAE (TEERMUE

as follows: TEFR)GMETI T
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000/ 7T

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 C£ 1,500,000/ 7T

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001% 7t £2,000,000/%8 7T
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Executive Committee

The Executive Committee comprises all the Executive Directors.
Mr. CHING Chi Fai is the Chairman and Messrs. CHING Chi Keung,
LIU Zigang, CHING Tsun Wah and KEUNG Kwok Hung are members.
The Executive Committee held four meetings during the year ended
31 December 2021.

The Executive Committee has been delegated with the general
powers to deal with the daily operations and management of the
Company, including but not limited to, setting up new companies,
opening bank accounts, arranging banking facilities, affixing the
Common Seal, issue of Shares upon exercise of any subscription or
conversion rights under any share option schemes of the Company,
warrants or convertible notes.

Investment Committee

The Investment Committee comprises two Executive Directors,
namely Mr. CHING Chi Fai as the Chairman and Mr. KEUNG Kwok
Hung as member, and one Independent Non-Executive Director,
namely, Mr. KWONG Tony Wan Kit as member. Mr. KWONG Tony
Wan Kit was appointed on 14 December 2021 and Mr. MA Chun
Fung Horace resigned on 13 December 2021 as a member of the
Investment Committee. The Investment Committee held a meeting
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Investment Committee has been delegated by the Board to
assess, consider and approve/recommend any potential investments
and/or divestments of the Group, which are less than US$20 million,
or 5% of the total market capitalisation of the Company, in
aggregate in each financial year, whichever is lower, and approve
each investment/divestment reaching/exceeding HK$3 million but not
exceeding 10% of the aforesaid aggregate amount.

HITEEE

HITZEEHE2RITES (BEEELER
TEIEERELE BITRIELE BARESL
EREREREORKE) AKX -BE_FT
T+ -A=t—RHILFE BITEE®

EEITOREH -

HITZESCER —RENUREARAR
FEEREETHE  BRETRREKIHA
A FMRITRP ZHRITRE  MERQ
AHE  REMARFERE S - RAE
Ak AT R AR RARTA T e (E ) R AR
BITEREITRND

REZES

REZESEHMUATES (BEBLLER
FEREBRHEEAKNE) R BILIEH
TEZ(BAREEARKE)MEK - BAKRE
AR T —F+_A+HHEZTIMEIR
BEER-—ZSE-_—F+_A+=ZBHIKE
ZEERE -BE_T-_—F+-A=+—
HIEFE  REZEEERIT—AEH -

EFCREREZE TG  EERILES
HETNAESERSEGBREESRE £
R20BEBETHEARRRBMES% (ARIE
EARE)ZBERER,/RBEEE Tt
EEEE/BEIFEETETBR LR
EBEI0%ZRE, T HEEE -

RERRZERARAR o —T - —FFH



The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions as set out in the CG Code. During the year ended 31
December 2021, the Board reviewed the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, continuous professional
development of the Directors and the senior management, the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Listing Rules and its
updates, the compliance of the Model Code by the Directors and
employees and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

Directors’ continuous professional development

Pursuant to the CG Code, all Directors should participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. All the Directors understand the
importance of continuous professional development and are
committed to participating any suitable training or reading relevant
materials in order to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
The Company has received from each Director his/her training record
of participation in continuous professional development for the year
ended 31 December 2021:
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The Company adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on 5 October 2007. Having made specific
enquiries to all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for overseeing the
preparation of the financial statements for each financial period
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group,
and of results and cash flow for the financial period. In preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently; adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and Hong Kong Accounting Standards; made prudent and
reasonable judgements and estimates and have prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis. The Directors also warrant that
the Group's financial statements will be published in a timely
manner.

The statement of the reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements of the Group of the auditor of the Company is set out in
the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 59 to 63 of this annual
report.

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and
effective risk management and internal control systems of the Group
and reviewing their effectiveness annually. The Group’s internal
control system includes a well-defined management structure with
limits of authority which is designed for the achievement of business
objectives, safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or
disposition, ensuring proper maintenance of books and records for
the provision of reliable financial information for internal use or
publication, and ensuring compliance with relevant legislations and
regulations. In addition, the Group has established risk management
procedures to identify and prioritise risks for the business to be
addressed by management. At least on an annual basis, management
identifies risks that would adversely affect the achievement of the
Group’s objectives, and assesses and prioritises the identified risks
according to a set of standard criteria. Risk mitigation plans and risk
owners are then established for those risks considered to be
significant.
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The risk management and internal control systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board appointed a
professional consulting firm with the responsibility to conduct
internal audit function and assess risks of the Company and perform
the agreed-upon procedures in relation to the internal controls of the
business of the Group. The Audit Committee and the management
will follow up the suggestions from the aforesaid professional
consulting firm to further improve the risk management and internal
control systems. The Group is committed to the identification,
monitoring and management of risks associated with its business
activities.

The Board conducts a review of the effectiveness of risk management
and internal control systems of the Group annually. The review of the
systems for the year ended 31 December 2021 included but not
limited to the Group’s ability to cope with its business transformation
and changing external environment; the scope and quality of
management’s review on risk management and internal control
systems; result of internal audit work; the extent and frequency of
communication with the Board in relation to result of risks and
internal control review; significant failures or weaknesses identified
and their related implications; and status of compliance with the
Listing Rules. The Board satisfies with the scope of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and considers
that the systems are effective and adequate.

Procedures and internal controls for handling and
dissemination of inside information

The Group complies with requirements of the SFO and the Listing
Rules. The Group discloses inside information to the public as soon as
reasonably practicable unless the information falls within any of the
safe harbours as provided in the SFO. Before the information is fully
disclosed to the public, the Group ensures the information is kept
strictly confidential. If the Group believes that the necessary degree
of confidentiality cannot be maintained or that confidentiality may
have been breached, the Group will immediately disclose the
information to the public. The Group is committed to ensuring that
information contained in published documents are not false or
misleading as to a material fact, or false or misleading through the
omission of a material fact in view of presenting information in a
clear and balanced way, which requires equal disclosure of both
positive and negative facts.
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Communication with Shareholders is given high priority by the
Group. A Shareholder communication policy has been adopted for
the purpose of ensuring that the Shareholders are provided with
ready, equal and timely access to the balanced and understandable
information about the Group.

Extensive information about the Group’s activities has been provided
in the annual reports and the interim reports which are sent to the
Shareholders and are available on the HKEXnews website of the
Stock Exchange and the Company’'s website. Shareholders may
communicate with the Directors and senior management in the
general meetings of the Company. External auditor is also invited to
attend the AGM to answer questions about the conduct of the audit,
the preparation and content of the independent auditor’s report, the
accounting policies adopted by the Company in relation to the
preparation of the financial statements and independence of the
auditor in relation to the conduct of the audit.

Convening an extraordinary general meeting by the
Shareholders

The procedures of convening an extraordinary general meeting by
the Shareholders are as follows:

Pursuant to Article 79 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
general meetings may be convened on the written requisition of any
two or more members of the Company deposited at the principal
office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company
ceases to have such a principal office, the registered office, specifying
the objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionists, provided
that such requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company which carries the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company. General meetings may also be convened on the written
requisition of any one member of the Company which is a recognised
clearing house (or its nominee(s)) deposited at the principal office of
the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to
have such a principal office, the registered office, specifying the
objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionist, provided that
such requisitionist held as at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which
carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company. If the
Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held within a
further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may convene the general meeting in the same manner, as
nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be convened by the
Board, provided that any meeting so convened shall not be held after
the expiration of three months from the date of deposit of the
requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.
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Putting forward proposals at Shareholders’
meetings

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to move new
resolution at general meetings under the Articles of Association of
the Company. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may
request the Company to convene a general meeting by following the
procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

Making enquires to the Board

Shareholders may make enquires to the Board in writing to the
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Unit D3,
8/F, TML Tower, No. 3 Hoi Shing Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories,
Hong Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

On behalf of the Board

CHING Chi Fai
Chairman
Hong Kong, 24 March 2022
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
MING FAI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Ming Fai International Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are
set out on pages 64 to 152, comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2021;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

FHEERZRERATKRRE
(RESHEIMI L ERLA)

ZMACETFTZAR
RBERERARDR A THEEAR])

&Elﬁﬁ% Al (AT ERE]) IR E
64Z152E MR A ML - B ¢

. RZTE=Z—F+=-A=+—HHEE

BEEREBR
. BEZALFENGEAEZEREER
. BEZBLFENGARREHK
. BEZALFENGARSRER &
. REMBHRRME BREERFR
REEMEREER -
EMHNER

BPRE  ZEHRAUEREREBERSE
quEW"AﬂEﬁEE’ME BB REEANEEM

REREBT EEER_ZT_-_—F+_A4
T+ HRGEEUMBRAREEEZB ILF
EMGEHBRBERGEESRE  YEHE

BERE(R 71%5'J>>El’7%)32&%%ﬁi‘£2%ﬁ¥%1%0
HMEREFE SR SEMO(EBET

RERNVEITER - WPIEZFEY T AENE
EEEARE [ZBE B4R A M R A
EOEEIBOTIEE—SEA -

HAIEGE RAMESNETREETEM
BEMARMNEATRIEHER -

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888
www.pwchk.com

AL ik 7K A8 B i H 3 35

TR R E T
AP : +852 22089 8888 » fHH : +852 2810 9888
www.pwchk.com

PAERERERERAR o —FT_—FFRH



Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to the assessment of the
expected credit losses of trade and bills receivables.

Key Audit Matter

Assessment of the expected credit losses of trade and bills
receivables

Refer to Notes 3(a)(iv), 4 and 12 to the consolidated financial
statements for the related disclosures.

As at 31 December 2021, the gross carrying amount of trade and
bills receivables amounted to HK$615.9 million, which accounted
for 35.4% of the Group's total assets. Provision is made for lifetime
expected credit losses on trade and bills receivables.

Management applied judgement in assessing the expected credit losses.
Receivables relating to customers with known financial difficulties or
significant doubt on collection of receivables are assessed individually
for provision for impairment allowance. Expected credit losses are also
estimated by grouping the remaining receivables based on their credit
risk characteristics and assessed collectively for credit losses allowance.
When measuring the expected credit losses, the Group considered
the credit losses incurred in the past, and adjusted by taking into
consideration current conditions and forward looking factors.

We focused on this area because the assessment of the expected credit

losses is subject to significant management judgement involved in the
estimation of the credit loss allowance.
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Key Audit Matter (Continued)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

In auditing the recognition of credit losses allowance of trade and bills
receivables, we have performed the following key procedures on the
assessment prepared by management.

We obtained an understanding of the management’s internal control
and assessment process of estimating the expected credit losses
allowances of trade and bills receivables, evaluated and validated
the key controls. We understood and validated the credit control
procedures performed by management, including its procedures
on periodic review on the assessment on the expected credit losses
allowance of receivables.

We assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement by considering
the degree of estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent risk
factors associated with the accounting estimates for loss allowance of
trade and bills receivables.

We assessed the appropriateness of the grouping and the credit losses
provisioning methodology adopted by management, discussed with
management, for the details of their evaluations and challenged the
underlying information referenced by management, which included
comparing with external evidence obtained from independent research
on public available information, as well as forward looking estimates,
performing ageing analysis, examining the historical settlement records
and testing of the subsequent settlements of the customers.

We checked the mathematical accuracy of the calculation of the
provision for loss allowance.

Based upon the above, we considered that management'’s judgements
and assumptions applied in the assessment of expected credit losses of
trade and bills receivables were supportable by the evidence obtained
and procedures performed.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.
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o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Wong Ka Keung, Johnny.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24 March 2022
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ASSETS
Non-current assets
Goodwill
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Investment property
Intangible assets
Deferred income tax assets
Other non-current assets
Investment in an associated company
Investments in joint ventures
Other financial assets

at amortised cost

BE

FRBEE

Bk

E R
EREEE
REMF
BIVEE
BEEMEREE
HiERBEE
R—EEERFNRE
REELENRE
BT R Z
Hip SR EE

5,390
445,126
106,235

15,911
369
3,771
11,510
5,221
323

132

10,633
450,971
111,707

15,451

773
2,703
11,991
5,831
387

308

Total non-current assets

Current assets
Inventories
Other current assets
Tax recoverable
Other financial assets
at amortised cost
Amounts due from joint ventures

Amount due from an associated company

Trade and bills receivables
Pledged bank deposit
Short-term bank deposits
Cash and cash equivalents

FRBEERE

FE

Hit g & E
AR = IE

BB AR Z
Hiv S REE
FEUW & & (b RFRIA
& U — e Bt & 2RI 5RIR
FEWE SRR KR RIE
EHEIRRITER
RHRITIER
ReMReEEEAB

593,988

266,284
56,686
11,952

15,750
455
2,338
528,418
11,689

251,164

610,755

241,670
41,130
469

12,390
581
2,969
499,531
986
392,954

Total current assets

RBEEAE

1,144,736

1,192,680

Total assets

1,738,724

1,803,435

EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners of
the Company

Share capital

Reserves

Final dividend proposed

ZNNE PN
FE 1k HE S
LN

&

EE RS

7,343
1,133,259

7,343
1,216,023
11,014

Non-controlling interests

FEVE b i

1,140,602
(46,156)

1,234,380
(42,046)

Total equity

HER

1,094,446

1,192,334




2020
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Note HK$'000

k23 FAETT
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Deferred income tax liabilities FRIEFTSFREE 10 5,412
Other non-current payables H b 3E R B FE S 0B 24 10,363
Borrowings B 22 3,380
Lease liabilities HEAE 7(@) 4,998
Total non-current liabilities kRBEBHEEE 24,153
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade payables B SRR 23 137,954
Accruals and other payables Bt E R M EAEN KIS 24 284,514
Current income tax liabilities BIERFTS M aE 24,031
Borrowings =P 22 117,721
Lease liabilities HEaE 7(@) 5,035
Loans from non-controlling interests KAFEERERZER 25 17,518
Dividends payable FEAAR B 175
Total current liabilities RBEEAEE 586,948
Total liabilities BEHAE 611,101
Total equity and liabilities BERREE 1,803,435

FOARI2EMGETFRERN T __F=
AZtHHESEEeETHUTERERR

The consolidated financial statements on page 64 to 152 were approved
by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2022 and were signed on its

behalf. BE o
CHING Chi Fai CHING Tsun Wah
oy BHE
Director Director
EE EFE

LitsR e BE R BEREEBENZ MM E— 5

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with
the accompanying notes.
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2020

—E-TE
Note HK$'000
Kz FHET
Revenue WA 5 1,353,099
Cost of sales SHER A 26 (989,613)
Gross profit EF 363,486
Other income HAb A 27 35,731
Distribution costs DA 26 (172,309)
Administrative expenses THRAX 26 (110,139
Net impairment losses on financial assets SREERESETHE 26 (14,554)
Impairment of goodwill BRI E 9(a) -
Operating (loss)/profit me () B8R 102,215
Finance income B WA 29 1,042
Finance costs B PR 29 (2,912)
Share of (loss)/profit of an associated company  JE{f — & A (B18) /% A 381
Share of (loss)/profit of joint ventures EIEA A0 (BE) % F 24
Fair value gain on an investment property —EREMEZ AT ERR 8 787
(Loss)/profit before income tax RetFrERA (FR) 87 101,537
Income tax expenses 8RS 31 (26,937)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(FE),#5A 74,600
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Hit2m (FE) W&
Items that may be subsequently HEEEF B2
reclassified to profit or loss Bl EHEH
Currency translation differences E¥HEEHE 22,443
Realisation of exchange reserve upon RPN B A RIS
dissolution of subsidiaries BRI (6,490)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income FE2E(FR)
for the year Wi4aE 90,553
(Loss)/profit attributable to: FEfh (B18) R
Owners of the Company KRBER A 79,046
Non-controlling interests FEER (4,446)
74,600
Total comprehensive (loss)/income L2 (B8) ks
attributable to: e
Owners of the Company ZAYNSIE SN 95,089
Non-controlling interests R (4,536)
90,553
(Loss)/earnings per share attributable to &2 FHEE A
owners of the Company EhEEk (FE) 2
(expressed in HK cents) (LB FIR)
Basic K 32(a) 10.8
Diluted e 32(b) 10.8

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be  _F ifi 47 & 2 H Uk 25 25 FE B2 B8 BT 2 Ff 3 — 6F
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. ME -
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Balance at 1 January 2020

Comprehensive income/(loss)

Profit/{loss) for the year

Other comprehensive
income/(loss)

Currency translation differences

Realisation of exchange reserve
upon dissolution of a subsidiary

Total comprehensive
income/(loss)

Final dividend relating to 2019
Interim dividend relating to 2020

Balance at 31 December 2020

Balance at 1 January 2021

Comprehensive loss

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income
Currency translation differences

Total comprehensive loss

Final dividend relating to 2020
(Note 33)

Balance at 31 December 2021

R-B-RE-B-RAkR

2EkE/ (B8)
KERRT/ (BR)
Bfi2EkE/ (§8)

HEREEE
BY-RHEARRER
BLER

AN/ (5848

“E-NERIRERE
“ECTRRZPARE

RZB-EE+-A=1-RAzE&H
R-E--E-F-A2&8
TEEER

B2 EhE

EHBEEE

2EFELE

"SRR RERE
(W#33)

RoB--E+A=+-He#l 7343 (6,051)

613,261

553,863

(93,535)

10,690

(82,845)

(10,933)

526,049

1,168,416

(93,535)

10,690

(82,345)

(10,933)

1,140,602

(37,510)

(42,046)

(42,046)

(97,925)

10,970

(86,955)

(10,933)

(46,156) 1,094,446



2020
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—T-FF
Note HK$'000
k=3 FHET
Cash flows from operating activities RETHHNRERE
Cash (used in)/generated from operations %« EE(FTR) /Fri3REsE 34() 151,295
Interests paid BAFA (2,912)
Income tax paid BEHATEH (48,266)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BESEE (FrA), g
operating activities R&F8 100,117
Cash flows from investing activities RETHNRERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BB A% - BiE MR E (90,516)
Purchase of intangible assets BAEREE (515)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE Fﬁ}%& 15
plant and equipment FT15 707 34(b) 628
Interests received =R ﬂ/u 1,042
Receipts from government grants WAL ERIES S 7 B -
Short-term bank deposits with maturity ZIHRA BB =18 A M2 H
over 3 months RITER (655)
Dividends received from an associated 2 —fE g E A
company f% 2 397
Net cash used in investing activities REFZBHFIARS TR (89,619)
Cash flows from financing activities RETBNESRE
Proceeds from borrowings BEEmEHIE 34(c) 79,603
Repayments of borrowings BEREE 34(c) (24,880)
Principal elements of lease payments MERNFKHARSEH 34(c) (5,645)
Dividends paid to Company’s shareholders 25 A FIAR B AE 2 (29,136)
Increase in pledged bank deposit B AR ER 1T 17 FG AN -
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEEE (FrH) e
financing activities ReE8E 19,942
Net (decrease)/increase in iﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%{ﬁlﬁ |
cash and cash equivalents W), R 30,440
Cash and cash equivalents at FUMBREE LA
the beginning of the year S{EEH 348,849
Exchange gain on cash and RekREFEEBN
cash equivalents PE H U = 13,665
Cash and cash equivalents FRANESRRS
at the end of the year ZEEA 18 392,954
The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in  F it ﬁ\ EREREREEBEWN 2K — 6
conjunction with the accompanying notes. B &



Ming Fai International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an
investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in manufacturing and trading of hospitality supplies products,
trading of operating supplies and equipment and manufacturing
and trading of health care and hygienic products.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 29 May
2007 as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Act (As Revised) of the Cayman Islands. Its registered
address is at the offices of Maples Corporate Services Limited,
PO Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104 Cayman
Islands.

The Company has its primary listing on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of units of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$'000"), unless otherwise stated.
These consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the board of directors (the “Board”) on 24 March 2022.

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial statements
are for the Group consisting of the Company and its subsidiaries.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"”) and the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance Cap. 622. The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of an investment property, which
is carried at fair value.

(b) New and amended standard adopted by the
Group

The Group has applied the following amendment for the first
time for their annual reporting period commencing 1 January
2021:

- Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2 -
amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7
and HKFRS 16

BB ZERAER AR ((ARAE ] S—
RMIREZERAR A BAREEWE
SLERHEEEREMBER HES
BEBRmERE ARBENHERFEE
BREERMm -

RARIRBRSES QA RE (KIEF]) K
—EE+FRATNEEREHSE
Mk AEREEREERAR o HaEff
Hb ik AMaples Corporate Services Limited,
PO Box 309, Ugland House, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1104 Cayman Islands#y 3
E YA

RRABNBEHAR AR (M5
R ERETE— LT

BB BTN W ERE M ERER TR
FAILTFTHEIT)INE - hFERE T
BEREN - E-_—_F=—A_F+MHHES
(BB HET-

AMEHIREUERE P BEREMN
RANIZSHRBE -BREAME
Sh - WWEBSRERATE 2WFEEB/EK
B-#HERTIDIBAEE (BARA R
HEEB A RAR) RH

(a) MBEE
AEENGEEPBHRRTIIER S
gt Ae ([EFetmAag))
Bz BETERELER ([FE
B iSRRI |) A KRB BECATHE
BI)SE622EMBERAFERERR
RAFERERTIRE KA LR
g, WEBEAFEINEZ —EEK
B EETIMER -

(b) fgéﬁuﬂééﬂﬂ ZHE] RAZIEET

AEBER-_Z-_—F—F—H
Mz FERESHEERNERT
HIHERT

- MEREENE - F_RER-
AR BHREERFESS - &
BB R ERFE395 - BB
M EERFAR - BBUB
HEERNE7R B EMB
HEELE 1658 (EFTA)
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(b) New and amended standard adopted by the

Group

The Group also elected to adopt the following amendment

early:

- Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June

2021

The amendments listed above did not have any impact on the
amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expected to

significantly affect the current or future periods.

(c) New standards and interpretations not yet

adopted

Apart from the amendments mentioned above, certain
new accounting standards, amendments to accounting
standards and interpretations have been published that are
not mandatory for the reporting period during the year ended
31 December 2021 and have not been early adopted by the
Group. These standards, amendments or interpretations are
not expected to have a material impact on the entity in the
current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future

transactions.

(d) Principles of consolidation and equity

accounting

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from
the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group (refer
to Note 2(e)).

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated
balance sheet respectively.
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(d) Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control or joint control. This
is generally the case where the Group holds between
20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting (refer to Note 2(d)(iv) below), after initially
being recognised at cost.

Under HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, investments
in joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures. The classification depends
on the contractual rights and obligations of each
investor, rather than the legal structure of the joint
arrangement. The Group has investments in joint
ventures.

Joint ventures

Investments in joint ventures are accounted for using
the equity method (refer to Note 2(d)(iv) below), after
initially being recognised at cost in the consolidated
balance sheet.

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in
profit or loss, and the Group’s share of movements in
other comprehensive income of the investee in other
comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable
from associates and joint ventures are recognised as a
reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted
investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity,
including any other unsecured long-term receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of
the other entity.

(d) aotREZEERE @

e NREARBUEEE
AR ENBRHEE 2 HIRER
HEESEZMBERE - A
SERERA H20%%E50%
RO IE ZE 4 o R W) IR K AN 1
Rig - BERNFRERB
EmesAS R (F2ET
HFEE2(d)(iv)) ©

RIEFBMBHRSELE 1
BEELH RAaERHN
RENBERHARKERAE
X -DBERTEREEN
eBHRaEREE(MESE
RHREERRBE) ME - K
SECNEEREELIRE -

o =1k

NEERAREEEEAR
RPERE RAELEN
REGCAEREHEAKR G
25T XM EE2(d)(iv)) e

REEEGD A KENS
BARATER - WHER N B
R B AR AR AN S E
BREIEBIRE B m N E
B REMEERETFED
HENAERAREERMAERE
EEEMEE K aEs -8
BERR MG ERED KR
KEBOEEERSBERE
FREEME

el 2 5= [ P 1 A B R B B 1R
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(d) &6tREZSRA (&

(d) Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated
to the extent of the Group s interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity
accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in Note 2(m).

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling and
non-controlling interests to reflect their relative interests
in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount
of the adjustment to non-controlling interests and
any consideration paid or received is recognised in a
separate reserve within equity attributable to owners of
the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of control,
joint control or significant influence, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value
with the change in carrying amount recognised in
profit or loss. This fair value becomes the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting
for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture
or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This
may mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an
associate is reduced but joint control or significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where
appropriate.
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(e) Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

° fair values of the assets transferred;

o liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired
business;

o equity interests issued by the Group;

o fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement; and

o fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with limited
exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable
assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
The excess of the:
o consideration transferred;

o amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity; and

o acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair
value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase.
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(e)

(f)

(9)

Business combinations (Continued)

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted to
their present value as at the date of exchange. The discount
rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being
the rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained
from an independent financier under comparable terms and
conditions. Contingent consideration is classified either as
equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial
liability are subsequently re-measured to fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair
value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising from
such re-measurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker,
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the Board that makes strategic decisions.
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(h) Foreign currency translation

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HK$, which is the
Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions or valuation where
items are re-measured.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the profit or loss.

The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

° assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

o income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at
the dates of the transactions); and

o all resulting currency translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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(h) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate. Currency translation differences arising are

recognised in other comprehensive income.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a disposal
involving loss of joint control over a joint venture that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of significant influence over an associate that includes
a foreign operation), all of the currency translation
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company

are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result
in the Group losing control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, the proportionate share
of accumulated currency translation differences are
re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals
(that is, reductions in the Group’s ownership interest
in associates or joint ventures that do not result in the
Group losing significant influence or joint control),
the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange

difference is reclassified to profit or loss.
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(i)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to profit or loss during the financial year in which they are
incurred.

Freehold land that has an indefinite useful life are not subject
to depreciation and is tested annually for impairment, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
they might be impaired.

Depreciation for buildings is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate cost over its estimated useful lives of 20
years.

Depreciation for other property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost
over their estimated useful lives, at the following rates per
annum:

Leasehold improvements  Shorter of 10 years or

lease period

Plant and machinery 10% — 33%

Motor vehicles 20%

Furniture and fixtures 33%

Computer equipment 33%

The assets’ residual value and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.
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(i)

()

(k)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised in profit or
loss.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment under construction or pending installation, and is
stated at cost less impairment losses. Cost comprises direct
costs of construction including borrowing costs attributable
to the construction during the period of construction. No
provision for depreciation is made on construction in progress
until such time as the relevant assets are completed and ready
for intended use.

Investment property

Investment property that is held for long-term rental yields
or for capital appreciation or both and is not occupied by the
Group.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including
related transaction costs. Subsequently, it is carried at fair
value, representing open market value determined annually
by external valuer. Fair value is based on active market prices,
adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature,
location or condition of the specific asset. If this information
is not available, the Group uses alternative valuation methods
such as recent prices from less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. These valuations are reviewed annually
by external valuer with changes in fair values recorded in
profit or loss.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed, any
difference resulting between the carrying amount and the
fair value of this item at the date of transfer is recognised
in equity as a revaluation of property, plant and equipment.
However, if a fair value gain reverses a previous impairment
loss, the gain is recognised in the profit or loss.

Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in Note 2(e). Goodwill
is not amortised but it is tested for impairment annually,
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on the
disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill
relating to the entity sold.
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(k) Goodwill (Continued)

)

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units (“CGUs") for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to
those CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit
from the business combination in which the goodwill arose.
The units or groups of units are identified at the lowest level
at which goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes, being the operating segments (Note 5).

Intangible assets

Separately acquired trademarks, investment in club
debentures and software licences are shown at historical
cost. They have a finite useful life and are subsequently
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses.

Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate the cost of trademarks, investment in club
debentures and software licences over their estimated
useful lives of 5 to 10 years.

Operating licence acquired in a business combination is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. It has a
finite useful life and is subsequently carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method over the expected life of the operating licence
of 2 years.

(m) Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that they might be impaired. Other assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows
which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other
assets or groups of assets (CGUs). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each balance sheet
date.
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(n) Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income, or
through profit or loss); and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this will
depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to account
for the equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI").

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership.

The Group measures a financial asset at its fair value
plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVPL"), transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial asset
carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.
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(n) Financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group's business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There
are three measurement categories to classify the debt
instruments:

(1

Amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

FVOCI

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the financial assets,
where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured
at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through other comprehensive income,
except for the recognition of impairment gains
or losses, interest income and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in profit or
loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using
the effective interest rate method. Impairment
expenses are presented as separate line item in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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(n) Financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

(3) FVPL
Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or
loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which it arises.

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade and bills receivables, amount due from an
associated company and amounts due from joint
ventures, the Group applies the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (“HKFRS
9”), which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

For other financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the Group measure the expected credit loss as either
12-month expected credit loss or lifetime expected
credit loss, depending on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
If a significant increase in credit risk of a receivable has
occurred since initial recognition, then impairment is
measured as lifetime expected credit loss.

(o) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counterparty.
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(p)

(a)

(r)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is assigned to individual items of inventory on the
basis of weighted average method. The cost of finished goods
and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour,
other direct costs and related production overheads based on
normal operating capacity.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
and distribution costs necessary to make the sale.

Trade, bills and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course
of business. If collection of trade, bills and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets.
If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and bills receivables are recognised initially at the
amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when they are
recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade and bills
receivables with the objective to collect the contractual cash
flows and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised
cost using the effective interest method less provision for
impairment.

When trade and bills receivables are uncollectible, they are
written off against the allowance account for trade and bills
receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited in the profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with
banks with original maturities of three months or less.
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(s) Trade and other payables

(t)

Trade payables represent liabilities for goods or services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which
are unpaid. Trade and other payable are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are unsecured, recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair values, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognised in the profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee
is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated balance sheet
when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished
or transferred to another party and the consideration
paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other income or
finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least twelve months after the balance sheet date.
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(u) Borrowing cost

(v)

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that
is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on
the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted
by changes in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries,
associated company and joint ventures operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and
considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will
accept an uncertain tax treatment. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.
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(v) Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax is recognised in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
income tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from
initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability
is settled.

The deferred income tax liability in relation to investment
property that is measured at fair value is determined assuming
the property will be recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available to utilise
those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred income tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary income differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in subsidiaries where
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities and when the deferred income taxes balances
relate to the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred income tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case,
the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.
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(w) Employee benefits

Liabilities for wages and salaries that are expected to
be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of
the period in which the employees render the related
services are recognised in respect of employees’ services
up to the end of the reporting period and are measured
at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities
are settled

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision, where appropriate, is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long-service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
balance sheet date.

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised
as a liability when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of services rendered
by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation
can be made.

Liabilities for bonus are expected to be settled within
twelve months and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when they are settled.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if the fund
does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the
benefits relating to employee service in the current and
prior periods. A defined benefit plan is a pension plan
that is not a defined contribution plan.
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(w) Employee benefits (Continued)

Typically defined benefit plans define an amount
of pension benefit that an employee will receive on
retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors
such as age, years of service and compensation.

The Group companies in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC") participate in defined contribution
retirement benefit plans organised by relevant
government authorities for its employees in the PRC and
contribute to these plans based on certain percentage
of the salaries of the employees on a monthly basis, up
to a maximum fixed monetary amount, as stipulated by
the relevant government authorities.

The government authorities undertake to assume the
retirement benefit obligations payable to all existing and
future retired employees under these plans.

The group companies in Hong Kong participate in a
mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for
its employees in Hong Kong. MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution scheme in accordance with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. Under the rules
of MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are
required to contribute 5% of the employees’ salaries,
up to a maximum of HK$1,500 per employee per
month. The assets of MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the group companies in an independently
administered fund.

There were no forfeited contributions (by employers
on behalf of employees who leave the scheme prior
to vesting fully in such contributions) to offset existing
contributions under the defined contribution schemes.
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(w) Employee benefits (Continued)

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement
date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary
redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably
committed to a termination when the entity has a
detailed formal plan to terminate the employment of
current employee without possibility of withdrawal.
In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy, the termination benefits are measured
based on the number of employees expected to accept
the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 months
after balance sheet date are discounted to their present
value.

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (shares or options) of the Company. The
fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the shares or options is recognised
as an expense. The total amount to be expensed is
determined by reference to the fair value of the shares
or options granted:

o including any market performance conditions (for
example, an entity’s share price);

o excluding the impact of any service and
non-market performance vesting conditions
(for example, profitability, sales growth targets
and remaining an employee of the entity over a
specified time period); and;

o including the impact of any non-vesting conditions
(for example, the requirement for employees to
save).
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(w) Employee benefits (Continued)

Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are
expected to vest. The total expense is recognised over
the vesting period, which is the period over which all
of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.
At the end of each reporting period, the entity revises
its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to vest based on the non-marketing vesting
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in the profit or loss, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues
new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital (nominal value) and share premium.

When the options are cancelled during vesting periods,
the Group recognises immediately the amount that
otherwise would have been recognised for services
received over the remainder of the vesting period.

When the options are modified, the Group will include
the incremental fair value granted in the measurement
of the amount recognised for services received as
consideration for the equity instruments granted. The
incremental fair value granted is the difference between
the fair value of the modified equity instrument and that
of the original equity instrument, both estimated as at
the date of the modification. If the modification occurs
during the vesting period, the incremental fair value
granted is included in the measurement of the amount
recognised for services received over the period from
the modification date until the date when the modified
equity instruments vest, in addition to the amount
based on the grant date fair value of the original equity
instruments, which is recognised over the remainder of
the original vesting period. If the modification occurs
after vesting date, the incremental fair value granted is
recognised immediately.
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(w) Employee benefits (Continued)

The grant by the Company of options over its equity
instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings
in the Group is treated as a capital contribution. The
fair value of employee services received, measured by
reference to the grant date fair value, is recognised
over the vesting period as an increase to investment in
subsidiary undertakings, with a corresponding credit to
equity in the parent entity accounts.

(x) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole.
A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
management’s best estimates of the expenditures required
to settle the present obligation of the end of the reporting
period. The discount rate used to determine the present value
is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
The increase in the provision due to passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.
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(y) Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable for the sale of goods in the ordinary course of
the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of value-added
tax, returns, rebates and discounts and after eliminated sales

within the Group.

Sales are recognised when control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are delivered to the
customers, the customer has accepted the products, the
collection of the related consideration is probable and there
is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s

acceptance of the products.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered as
this is the point in time that the consideration is unconditional
because only the passage of time is required before the

payment is due.

A contract liability is recognised when a customer pays
consideration, or is contractually required to pay consideration
and the amount is already due, before the Group recognises
the related revenue. The Group recognised its contract
liabilities under accruals and other payables as receipt in
advance from customers in the consolidated balance sheet.

(z) Rental income

Rental income from investment property is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease term.

(aa) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using

the effective interest method.

(ab) Government grant

Grant from the government is recognised at its fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and the Group will comply with all attached

conditions.
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(ab) Government grant (Continued)

Government grant relating to costs is deferred and recognised
in the profit or loss over the period necessary to match it with
the costs that it is intended to compensate.

Government grant relating to property, plant and equipment
and service concession arrangement is included in accruals
and other payables and is credited to the profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

(ac) Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components.
The Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
the lease and non-lease components based on their relative
stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real estate for
which the Group is a lessee, it has elected not to separate
lease and non-lease components and instead accounts for
these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured
on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net
present value of the following lease payments (if applicable):

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is

reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.
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(ac) Leases (Continued)

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of
the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate
that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the
right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with
similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group uses
recent third-party financing received by the individual lessee
as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing
conditions since third party financing was received, nature of
the lease assets and the terms and conditions of the leases,
such as the lease periods and geographical locations.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable
lease payments based on an index or rate, which are not
included in the lease liability until they take effect. When
adjustments to lease payments based on an index or rate take
effect, the lease liability is reassessed and adjusted against the
right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income over the lease period
so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following (if applicable):

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;
o prepayment;
o any initial direct costs; and

© restoration costs.
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(ac) Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter
of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line
basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase
option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as
an expense in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12
months or less.

The Group has adopted Amendment to HKFRS 16 -
Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions retrospectively from 1
January 2020. The amendment provides an optional practical
expedient allowing lessees to elect not to assess whether a
rent concession related to COVID19 is a lease modification.
Lessees adopting this election may account for qualifying
rent concessions in the same way as they would if they were
not lease modifications. The practical expedient only applies
to rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the
COVID-19 pandemic and only if all of the following conditions
are met: a. the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the same as,
or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately
preceding the change; b. any reduction in lease payments
affects only payments due on or before 30 June 2021; and c.
there is no substantive change to other terms and conditions
of the lease.

The Group has early adopted Amendment to HKFRS 16 -
Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021,
which extended the practical expedient to lease payments
that were due on or before 30 June 2022.

The Group has applied the practical expedient to all qualifying
COVID-19-related rent concessions.
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(ac) Leases (Continued)

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a
lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
underlying asset and recognised as expense over the lease
term on the same basis as lease income. The respective
leased assets are included in the consolidated balance sheet
based on their nature. The Group did not need to make any
adjustments to the accounting for assets held as lessor as a
result of adopting the new leasing standard.

(ad) Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where the Company’s shares are acquired from the market
by the Scheme (Note 20(b)), the total consideration of shares
acquired from the market (including any directly attributable
incremental costs) is presented as shares held for the Scheme
and deducted from total equity.

(ae) Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors, where
appropriate.
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(a) Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk
and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall
risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group's financial performance.

The Group’s foreign currency transactions are mainly
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”), HK$ and United
States dollars (“US$"”). The majority of assets and
liabilities are denominated in RMB, HK$ and USS$,
and there are no significant assets and liabilities
denominated in other currencies. The Group is subject
to foreign exchange rate risk arising from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets and
liabilities which are denominated in a currency other
than HK$ or RMB, which are the functional currencies
of the major operating companies within the Group.

As HK$ is pegged to US$, management believes that
the exchange rate risk for translations between HK$ and
US$ does not have a material impact to the Group. The
exchange rate of RMB to HK$ is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by
the PRC government.

This currency exposure is managed primarily through
sourcing raw materials denominated in the same
currency. The Group has not considered it appropriate
to substantially hedge against currency risks through
forward exchange contracts upon consideration of the
currency risk involved and the cost of obtaining such
cover.

At 31 December 2021, if HK$ had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against the RMB, with all other
variables held constant, post-tax loss for the year would
have been approximately HK$4,887,000, lower or
higher (2020: post-tax profit for the year would have
been approximately HK$3,781,000, higher or lower),
mainly as a result of foreign exchange differences on
translation of RMB denominated net payables of the
group entities with HK$ as their functional currency.

(a)

Bt %5 L B (R 3=

REBEREASZZERERAR
miZERE (BFEINERE ﬂfﬂ
S RERRR) - EERR LR
&Rk °$El2¥ﬁ 578
BB TRemmB 2 T ia
B - 75 SRk 2 2R R AR & B B
ERIBATREB A TR ZE o

AREBRINER HEBAA
RETARE]D BRERE
T ([T 7HE - KEBD &
ERBBEAARE -BTR
XEHE RBEEREE
REBENEMEREE &K
SEEAABTHARE (K
SEETNEEZEERFRNY
REEE) AINEEEEN R
REERHMEERBEEN
BEMmASIMNEEXRR

HRABITEIR TS B
EBHE  BTRETETER
B O IE R [ i B AN SR B 3
BEARE - ARBHLBTIH
DEE =R 7838 ~T FP B BT AR 4 Y
SINEE & I AR Al K A5 -

B R R E BB SR A
HEE R EN R ET
B - KEEMEREER
RRERDRSAERRENK
Ktk AEERRTEES
BERIMNES D E I ER
EITREH )

R—_FT-——&F+_A=+—
H B THARKESR
FtBk5% - i T A H b &
e NEERRTIEE
1A% Rk 4 k42 494,887,000
/EE(—v—vﬁz EEFBT
i 18 F) % 12 00 =k 8 > 4Y
3,781,000 L) * EFEZMHR
LB TANEEENEERE
RnE U ARETENES
FRIRFER M 5| ZUE X Z 58T
@(o

PAERERERERAR o —FT_—FFRH



(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

At 31 December 2021, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against the US$, with all other
variables held constant, post-tax loss for the year would
have been approximately HK$7,686,000, higher or
lower (2020: post-tax profit for the year would have
been approximately HK$3,363,000, lower or higher),
mainly as a result of foreign exchange differences on
translation of US$ denominated net receivables of the
group entities with RMB as their functional currency.

The Group has cash balances placed with reputable
banks and financial institutions, which generate interest
income for the Group.

Borrowings at variable rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest-rate risk. Borrowings at fixed rates
and lease liabilities expose the Group to fair value
interest-rate risk. Details of the Group’s borrowings
have been disclosed in Note 22 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

The Group analyses its interest rate exposure on a
dynamic basis. Various scenarios are simulated taking
into consideration of refinancing, renewal of existing
positions, and alternative financing. Based on these
scenarios, the Group calculates the impact on profit of
a defined interest rate shift. For each simulation, the
same interest rate shift is used. The scenarios are run
only for assets and liabilities that represent the major
interest-bearing positions.

Based on the simulations performed, the impact on
post-tax loss (2020: post-tax profit) of a 100 basis-point
shift would be a maximum increase/decrease of
approximately HK$818,000 for the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: approximately HK$287,000)
mainly as a result of change in interest rates on pledged
bank deposit, short-term bank deposits and borrowings
(2020: short-term bank deposits and borrowings).
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(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

The Group is not exposed to equity securities price risk
and commodity price risk.

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents,
short-term bank deposits, pledged bank deposit,
amount due from an associated company, amounts
due from joint ventures, as well as credit exposures to
trade and bills receivables and other financial assets at
amortised cost.

(1) Risk management
Credit risk is managed on a group basis.
Management has policies in place to monitor the
exposures to these credit risks on an ongoing
basis.

The Group has put in place policies to ensure that
sales of products are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history and the Group performs
periodic credit evaluations of its customers based
on their past repayment patterns, latest business
developments and other factors. The Group’s
historical experience in collection of trade and bills
receivables falls within the recorded allowances.

The table below shows the credit limit and
balance of the five major debtors at 31 December
2021 and 2020.
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(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

)

Impairment of financial assets

Trade and bills receivables, amount due from an
associated company and amounts due from joint
ventures for sales of goods of the Group are subject
to the expected credit losses model. While cash and
cash equivalents, short-term bank deposits, pledged
bank deposit and other financial assets at amortised
cost are also subject to the impairment requirements
of HKFRS 9, the identified impairment loss was
immaterial.

Trade and bills receivables, amount due from an
associated company and amounts due from joint
ventures

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to measuring expected credit losses which uses
a lifetime expected loss allowance for trade and
bills receivables, amount due from an associated
company and amounts due from joint ventures.
The Group measures the expected credit losses on a
combination of both individual and collective basis.

Measurement of expected credit losses on
individual basis

The receivables relating to customers with known
financial difficulties or with significant doubt on
collection of receivables are assessed individually
for provision for impairment allowance. As at 31
December 2021, the balance of loss allowance
in respect of individually assessed receivables was
approximately HK$71,370,000 (2020: approximately
HK$26,618,000).
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(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement of expected credit losses on
individual basis (Continued)

The following table presents the gross carrying
amount and the loss allowance in respect of
the individually assessed receivables as at 31
December 2021 and 2020:

Gross carrying amount RE&E
Loss allowance EEEA
Net carrying amount FREEE

Measurement of expected credit losses on
collective basis

Expected credit losses are also estimated by
grouping the remaining receivables based on the
credit risk characteristics and assessed collectively
for credit losses allowance. When measuring the
expected credit losses, the Group considered the
credit losses incurred in the past, and adjusted by
taking into consideration current conditions and
forward looking factors.

As at 31 December 2021, the balance of loss
allowance in respect of these collectively assessed
receivables was approximately HK$16,078,000
(2020: approximately HK$13,802,000) based on
expected credit losses rates up to 6.70% (2020:
5.00%) applied on different groupings.
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(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(2) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement of expected credit losses on
collective basis (Continued)
Impairment and reversal of impairment losses
on receivables are presented as “net impairment
losses on financial assets” in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. When a
receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for receivables. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited in the profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents, short-term bank
deposits, pledged bank deposit and other financial
assets at amortised cost

There is no loss allowance for cash and cash
equivalents, short-term bank deposits, pledged
bank deposit and other financial assets at
amortised cost as at 31 December 2021 (2020:
same).

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash, the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities. The
Group aims to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping
sufficient cash.

As at 31 December 2021, the cash and cash equivalents
of the Group approximated HK$251,164,000 (2020:
HK$392,954,000).

The following tables analyse the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in
the tables are the contractual undiscounted cash flows
and the earliest date the Group can be required to pay.
Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying
values, as the impact of discounting is not significant.
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(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

Specifically, as at 31 December 2021, for borrowings
which contained repayment on demand clauses which
could be exercised at the banks’ sole discretion, the
balances had been reclassified as current liabilities.
The analysis shows the cash outflow based on earliest
period in which the Group can be required to pay, that
is if the lender were to invoke their unconditional rights

to call the loans with immediate effect (2020: same).

At 31 December 2021

Borrowings

- principal portion
Other Borrowings

- principal portion
Lease liabilities
Trade payables
Accruals and

other payables
Loans from non-controlling

interests
Dividends payable

At 31 December 2020

Borrowings

- principal portion
Other Borrowings

- principal portion
Lease liabilities
Trade payables
Accruals and

other payables
Loans from non-controlling

interests
Dividends payable
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As at 31 December 2021
Borrowings:

- principal portion
- interest portion

As at 31 December 2020

Borrowings:
- principal portion
- interest portion

R-B=-%
+-A=+-H

B8
-KeHH 64,231
-HEHH 1,783

65,974

R-E-Ef%

+=A=t+-H
EE:

-K&Hn 55,370
-HEHH 1,503

56,873

30,843
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(b) Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets
to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt (borrowings less cash
and cash equivalents) divided by total equity. Management
considers a gearing ratio of not more than 30% as
reasonable.

e

Borrowings S

Less: Cash and cash equivalents

Net cash FHE
Total equity B
Gearing ratio BEEAMFELE

Surplus cash held by the operating entities over the
requirement for working capital management are transferred
to interest bearing current accounts and time deposits, with
appropriate maturities to manage its overall liquidity position.
As at 31 December 2021, the Group maintains cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$251,164,000 (31 December
2020: approximately HK$392,954,000) that are expected to
be readily available to meet the cash outflows of its financial
liabilities.
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(c) Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities including cash and cash equivalents, short-term bank
deposits, pledged bank deposit, trade and bills receivables,
other financial assets at amortised cost, amount due from
an associated company, amounts due from joint ventures,
borrowings, trade payables, dividends payable, accruals and
other payables, and loans from non-controlling interests,
approximate their fair values due to their short maturities.
Lease liabilities are initially measured on a present value basis
by discounting the lease payments to net present value using
the entities’ incremental borrowing rate.

See Note 8 for disclosures of investment property that is
measured at fair value at 31 December 2021.

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
addressed below.

Assessment of the expected credit losses of trade
and bills receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of trade and bills
receivables based on assumption about risk of default and expected
credit loss rate (Note 3(a)(iv)). The Group uses judgement in making
these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculations based on the credit losses incurred in the past, current
conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at the balance sheet
date.
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The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
Board. The Board reviews the Group’s internal reports in order
to assess performance and allocate resources. The Board has
determined the operating segments based on these reports.

The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing and trading
of hospitality supplies products (“Hospitality Supplies Business”),
trading of operating supplies and equipment (“OS&E Business”),
and manufacturing and trading of health care and hygienic
products (“Health Care and Hygienic Products Business”). From
a geographical perspective, the Board assesses the performance
based on the Group’s revenue by geographical location in which
the customer is located. Altogether, the Group has three reporting
segments: (i) Hospitality Supplies Business; (ii) OS&E Business; and (iii)
Health Care and Hygienic Products Business.

The Board assesses the performance of the operating segments
based on a measure of (loss)/profit before income tax, share of
(loss)/profit of an associated company, share of (loss)/profit of joint
ventures and fair value gain on an investment property.

Information provided to the Board is measured in a manner
consistent with that of the consolidated financial statements.

Sales between segments are carried out at normal commercial
terms. Depreciation and amortisation charges are apportioned with
reference to respective segment revenue from external customers.
Assets and liabilities of the Group are allocated by reference to the
principal markets in which the Group operates.
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Geographical (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the revenue of the
Group was recognised at a point in time and no sales derived from
a single customer exceeded 10% of the revenue of the Group
(during the year ended 31 December 2020: same).

During the year ended 31 December 2021, additions to non-current
assets comprise additions to right-of-use assets, property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets and other non-current assets (during
the year ended 31 December 2020: same).

Leasehold Motor

Land Buidings  improvements vehicles
T BT HENRRe it
HK§'000 HK§000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
Thn TiEL T Thn

At1 January W-E-%F

00 e
Cost A 17443 269,178 107,546 26320
Accumulated depreciation ZifE

and impaiment LiE - (97966) (79618) (20401)
Net book amount FHFE 17483 mm 2798 5919
Year ended Hz-E-Ef

31 December 2020 tZB=1-HILEE
Opening net book amount ENEEFE 17483 171212 27928 5919
Additions WE - 29,268 21,03 106
Transfer &Y - 53,78 4420 -
Disposals (ote 340 HE( - - (17) B
Depreciation (Note 26) i - (15,899) (7,645) (2,649)
Exchange differences 116 3,655 2,021 80
Closing netbookamount ~~ ERIRE FE 17,559 W51 50,730 3457
At 31 December RZECEE

200 +ZB=1-H
Cost s 17,559 361,757 142,036 26,682
Accumulated depreciation ZithE

and impaiment ke - (120243) (91,306) 13225
Net book amount REFE 17559 1514 50,730 3457
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i & (&)

BE T -+ _-_A=+—HI&F
B AEB/ KA ZTE R @B E g
R BEREE—RFPNHEEHASE
WABI0% A E(BiZ=ZE =FF+=
A=+—HIFE : HR) -

HE—_ZT-_—F+_A=+—HLHF
B ERBSEEABEREFEFERAES
E -V BEEXEH BEFEERE
WIERBEE (HE-_ZE-_ZTF+ -8
=+—HILFE:HR) -

Fumiture Computer Plantand  Construction
and fixtures equipment machinery In progress Total
FHEEE  ERRE RRRBE  EERIE 3t
HKS'000 HK§000 HK§'000 HK$000 HKS'000

ThL TR ThR TR ThR

19,089 19923 25311 62,098 775,368
(16,884) (19073) (140,795) - (374,731)
2,805 850 112376 62,098 400,631
2,805 850 112376 62,098 400,631

860 417 35,285 557 90,516

- - - (57,698) -

(136) - (651) - (807)
(179) (881) (22,184) - (50,033)
137 13 4,89 (256) 10,664
2,887 399 129,724 4701 450,971
20,001 18867 299,515 4701 891,118
(17,114) (18.468) (169,791) - (40,147)
2,887 399 129,724 4701 450,971



Year ended HEo5--F

31 December 2021 tZR=t-ALEE

Opening net book amount ~~ EXEA FE 17,559 241,514 50,730 3457 2,887 399 129,724 4,701 450,971
Additions BE - - 9,036 2,040 39 401 12,731 20,125 850
Transfer 4] - 4475 17,403 - - - - (21,878) -
Disposals (Note 34(b)) HE M) - - - B - (1,659) - (1,662)
Depreciation (Note 26) E(lH25) (18,335) (9,549) (2,232 (876) (692) (24,363) (56,047)
Exchange differences EizE 2,776 1,152 25 64 - 2,455 6,592

Closing net book amount ~ EXEEFE 17,663 230,430 68,772 3,20 2,411 108 118,888 3,564 445,126

At 31 December HZBz-%

wm tZA=t-8
Cost fix 17,663 372,23 170,563 28,424 19,995 19,487 312,628 3,564 944,547
Accumulated depreciation  E3tiE

and impairment Rig (141,793) (101,791) (25,134) (17,584) (19,379) (193,740) (499,421)

Net book amount 17,663 230430 68,772 3,290 2411 108 118,888 3,564 445,126

Cost of sales $HE R AR 41,489
Distribution costs DR AR 2,922
Administrative expenses THRAX 11,636




(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated

balance sheet

The consolidated balance sheet shows the following amounts

related to leases:

Right-of-use assets

Leased office premises
Leased factory buildings

Leased warehouse

Lease liabilities
Current
Non-current

ERREEE
HERNEWME
HEmEIETF
HERE

HESE
mE
FRE

During the year ended 31 December 2021, additions to the
right-of-use assets amounted to approximately HK$ 1,134,000
(2020: approximately HK$7,308,000) were recognised by the
Group in the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2021, certain right-of-use assets with an
aggregate carrying value of approximately HK$29,077,000
were pledged as securities for banking facilities of the Group
(2020: approximately HK$30,204,000) (Note 22).

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited
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(a)

REEEEEBRERN
&5
BAEBEEABRER T H
BN eE

HE

2020
—TTF
HK$'000
TAET

93,204
18,203
300

111,707

5,035
4,998

10,033

RBE-_TE_—F+=-_A=+—
BIEFE BEEZRASEGRE
MBHREARETREEELD
1,134,000 T (ZZE=_FF : 4
7,308,000/ 7T) °

R—ZZE=_—F+=-—A=+—8"
= T 48 BR ™ {8 4929,077,00078 7T
(ZZ =4 : #J30,204,000/8 L)
mEREEEEERIEAAER
BITRIE IR R (T sE22) -



(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income

The consolidated statement of comprehensive income shows
the following amounts relating to leases:

Depreciation of right-of-use assets FAEEEITE

Leased office premises HERANEYE
Leased factory buildings HERFEEF
Leased warehouse HERRE

Interest expenses on lease liabilities ~ FHEBEF EHX
(Note 29) (K13229)

Other lease expenses (Note 26) Him &R (M 5t26)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the total cash
outflows for leases of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$12,175,000 (2020: approximately HK$13,565,000).

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for

The Group leases various land, offices premises, factory
buildings and warehouses.

Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 1 to
50 years, which do not contain any extension options.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
a wide range of different terms and conditions.

(b) REE2HKRERBEIN

=5

FermlamRBR NIEEE
NS

2020
—E-TF
HK$'000
T T

4,376
3,173
1,154

8,703

341

7,579

BE_Z-_—F+=-_A=+—H
tFE AEEFHEENE SR
4258 4912,175,000 7T (— & —
T4 : #913,565,000/8 7C) ©

ARMIEREHRESED
o8

AREFEHREZELH BRAEY
¥ HEEFEEE-

BEE K — KRB/ E50F H B E H
R - SN EIEEMAEREERE -

HEGRFOEBHE LEEX
T8 R B AR R B MR £ o

PAERERERERAR o —FT_—FFRH



At 1 January
Revaluation gain
Exchange differences

At 31 December

Rental income (Note 27) He WA (H1it27)
Direct operating expenses arising from KREEEHEESRAZ—HE

an investment property that generates KEWMEZEELERY
rental income (Note 26) (Hiat26)




(@ Independent valuation of the Group's investment property
was performed by the valuer, Asset Appraisal Limited, to
determine the fair value of the investment property as at 31
December 2021 and 2020. The following table analyses the
investment property carried at fair value.

Fair value hierarchy

() AEBEREWESHMGHELTH
ERENEBELEAR AT ET
BYHE NEEREWERZ
E-—FR-_ZE-_ZFTF+H1
Zt+—HZAFE - TR
AFEHIRZIEEMERTIEDT °

DFEER

Fair value measurements at
31 December 2020 using
R-ZBE_ZTF+_-_HA=+—H
N EFE RATSEED)

Quoted price Significant
in active other Significant
markets for observable unobservable
entical assets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

HEEERE HipEER EENTA

REMISHHRE TBRRBARE BRHARE

Recurring fair value gEMATE
measurements: =
Investment property WEME
id
Description
& 87
Recurring fair value wEMEATE
measurements: =
Investment property mEYE

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers
out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfer. There were
no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

(E—#R) (=) (B=4)
HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$°000
TAET TET TAET

- 15,451 -

AREZREDNEREE 2 F
HRERS( T s 2 BBRART
EERZBARBE - RER -
£— —R=BZRAEEDE -

RERRERARAR o —FT - —FFH



(@)  (Continued) (@ (&)

Level 2 fair values of completed investment properties have PR ITREMEZE_RAFEE
been generally derived using the sales comparison approach. —RIAHE L BIAG H o #if:m Al
Sales prices of comparable properties in close proximity are B EMENHEEEREREYZE
adjusted for differences in key attributes such as property HEETERENEE T AR
size. The most significant input into this valuation approach HEFEZREZNHAZREA
is price per square feet. The higher the price per square feet, HEYHFROEKR - A FLERETF
the higher the fair value. A REERE EFAmE N -

(b)  Details of the investment property: (b) TEWHE IS
The investment property of the Group are leased to the AREBZKEMERTAEERE
tenant under operating lease with fixed monthly rental WHeHmELEHEnEEAL -
receivable and the Group closely monitors the risk associated AEEZYEREBEEMRAE
with its right retains in the underlying asset. R EBREE -

Address of investment property Existing use Tenure

REY 3t B Al A& i

Room 101, Chuntian Garden, No. 6, 31 December 2021: Rental The property is held under
Lane 999, Loushanguan Road, (31 December 2020: Rental) long term lease
Changning District, Shanghai City,
the PRC

HE EEmRERE L HKIE T —F+-A=+—H:HME& METRERAEERSE
65 B AEE101E (ZZ=ZF+=R

=+—R:HM8§)

(0 At 31 December 2021, the future aggregate minimum o MZE-_—F+-_A=+—8"
lease receipts under non-cancellable operating lease of the REBRBIAGFHREMES
investment property not recognised in the consolidated BHEZERBRARZEEASE WA
financial statements, which are receivable by the Group as REE (CRNERE SRR FER) [0
follows: I

2020

—T-FTF

HK$'000

T

Within one year —FR 181
Later than one year but no later BR—F

than 5 years BANERTF -

181
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(a) Goodwill
At 1 January Rn—H—H
Impairment of goodwill EERE
Exchange differences ME H Z R

At 31 December

Goodwill is allocated to the respective groups of CGUs,
which represent the lowest level within the Group at which
the relevant goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes, and not larger than an operating segment.

As at 31 December 2021, goodwill of approximately
HK$5,390,000 is attributable to the cash-generating unit
("CGU") for the Group's business in Cambodia. As at 31
December 2020, goodwill of approximately HK$5,358,000
and HK$5,275,000 is attributable to the CGUs for the
Group's business in Cambodia and Japan respectively.

The prolonged unprecedented COVID-19 pandemic and
the associated anti-epidemic measures extended following
the fifth wave of COVID-19 infections in late 2021 had
further delayed in recovery in the tourism industry in Japan.
The prolonged pandemic has caused changes in consumer
behavior, with more customers shifting to e-commerce
platform. In view of the economic performance of the CGU
for the Group’s business in Japan which was worse than
expected, management considered that indicators of potential
impairment of goodwill did exist as at 31 December 2021.
Management carried out the impairment assessment for the
CGU by determining the recoverable amount based on the
higher of fair value less cost of disposal (“FVLCD") derived
from market search and value-in-use calculation using cash
flow projections from financial budgets covering a period
of 5 years approved by senior management. As a result, an
impairment loss on the goodwill attributable to CGU of the
Group's business in Japan of HK$4,759,000 was recognised
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

R+—A=+—8

(a) &

2020
—E-FTF
HK$'000
FHT

10,354

279

10,633

ﬁEiﬁW@%Zﬁé?E
VAR B AR A AL E I M
ﬁ§2?ﬁ*$ﬁTﬁﬁm

~|*7}

mE DI {85 T
wa@mm

ok
3
&

RZEZ—4F+=ZRA=+—8"
& 4 #495,390,0005% 7T J5 5K B 72X
SECRBEEXEBCRSELES
N(BEELEEMN]) R
—EFE+-A=+—H BEY
5,358,000/% 7t M #J5,275,000/% 7T
o RIREARNEE 2 RIFEKB
REFZHSEESBA °

Al BT A& & HICOVID-19K 7 17 15 48

BEA UERZZE-_—FENE
FECOVID-195% 2 1% & & A9 12 73
Prfae  E—PHBEAEEN
BEELSKIMAMAE FTER - B H
HANBRBE B HEHEBITASRE
bt BEZRFPHEEAETEFL
FTa - ARAEBERAXEBNIR
CELEBMNMEERTBRES

EHERE R-_TE-_—F+=
BA=+—HB A0 2BEL~BEE
AREHBERE EEEEBRE
RETR (RIS & EIEE Tt E
H %*SEH;@Fﬁ E’Jﬁﬂiﬁ”) C AR
BB EESHMEH 2 AFERSD
%ﬁ$wﬁ$ﬁﬂm%ﬂ$nﬁ
FHEEMENRSEETA K
Do EUHESEESE
TREF G ALt AEE R A
EBHNReEEBMBEERER
B2 -_—4F+=-A=+—H
1F 4F [Z FE R R (B &5 184,759,000
=

PAERERERERAR o —FT_—FFRH



(a) Goodwill (Continued)

Independent valuation of the recoverable amounts of the
CGUs was performed by the an independent professionally
qualified valuer.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on
a value-in-use calculation. The calculation uses pre-tax cash
flow projection based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period. Thereafter, the cash
flows are extrapolated using the terminal growth rate not
exceeding the long-term average growth rate of the countries
in which the CGU operates.

(a) BE @

ReELBEM I RESREE B
BYEESBERMGEMETEY
fli{g

ReEL Bz BEERIIR
EREEFEIEEE - WAtET
EERB AR SRR ERE R
B AEZ0hFHNTBBEE M
8 AFHRNRESAERTED
AeELBENKEMEBRREN
FHERRNGEERRES -

The key assumptions are as follows: FERKWOT :

2020 2020

—E_TF b Sk 302

Pre-tax discount rate  F A #7387 &K 20.0% 22.1%
Compound annual WAEEF

growth rate of R R
revenue 12.9% 15.5%
Terminal growth rate 4% g & & 2.0% 1.0%

The recoverable amount calculated based on value in use
exceeded carrying value as at 31 December 2021. A decrease
in compound annual growth rate of revenue by 4.6% (2020:
3.2%) would remove the remaining headroom for the CGU
of the Group operation in Cambodia.

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2021

BEFEABEEFESEOT KD
THEBER-_ZE=Z—F+=A
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At 1 January 2020
Cost i 1,772 98 10,203 1,728 14,671
Accumulated amortisation and impairment EHEELEE (1,502) (968) (9,246) (1,443) (13,159)

Net book amount

Year ended

31 December 2020 TZAST-ALFE
Opening net book amount ENRETE 270 957 285 1512
Additions RE - 515 - 515
Amortisation (Note 26) B35 #6) (121) - (849) (285) (1,255)
Exchange differences ERER -

- 1 - 1
Closing net hook amount EXRERE 149 - 624 - JE

At 31 December 2020 WZE-FF+-f=+-H
Cost R 1772 968 10,719 1,728 15,187

Accumulated amortisation and impairment EHEELEE (1,623) (968) (10,095) (1,728) (14,414)

Net book amount REFE 149 624 - 773

Year ended BE-5--%12R

31 December 2021 St-HLEE
Opening net book amount ENEREE UE
Additions RE 452 452
Amortisation (Note 26) B (hie) - (809) - (853)
Exchange differences ERER - 3

Closing net book amount EXRERE 102 - 267 - 369

At 31 December 2021 WZE--F+ZB=+-H
Cost R 1,770 968 117N 1,728 15,637
Accumulated amortisation ZaTEH (1,668) (968) (10,904) (1,728) (15,268)

Net book amount




(b) Intangible assets (Continued) (b) BEEE @)

Amortisation of the Group's intangible assets have been AEBEEEENBHEENES
charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive 2HEUW RN - F1BWT -

income as follows:

2020
—EEHF
HK$'000
FET
Cost of sales SHER A 284
Distribution costs 2 8H A AR 463
Administrative expenses THHAXZ 508
1,255
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a & B A TE Al ok Hl BT REF 5 BN EARE TR &
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current EHEAHRIES BRI - MEBELEMRER
tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes related to the W B — B B R - AT A IR FT IS R
same fiscal authority. The offsetting amounts are as follows: BEEBEGAKE EESF|OT :
2020
—EETHF
HK$'000
FET
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTISRERE 2,703
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTSH AR (5,412)
Deferred income tax liabilities, net RIEFTSHBEFEE (2,709)
The net movement on the deferred income tax account is as REFTISTERE 2 EE))FuT
follows:
2020
—E-THF
HK$'000
TET
At 1 January m—H—H (3,511)
Recognised in profit or loss (Note 31) RIB R NHER (H231) 697
Exchange differences E W ZERE 105
At 31 December R+—A=+—8H (2,709)

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2021



The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of
balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

Deferred income tax liabilities

Accelerated tax

depreciation

MEHERE

HK$'000

TAT

At 1 January 2020 R=B-2£-f-A (766)
Recognised in profit or loss RERNER 513
Exchange differences EREE -

At 31 December 2020 RZE-ZE+-A=1-H

Recognised in profit or loss MEZRED
Exchange differences EiEE
At 31 December 2021 R-B_-F1-A=t1-H

Deferred income tax assets

Decelerated

tax

depreciation

BRI

HK$'000

FET

At 1 January 2020 R-ZB-2F-F—H 2,337
Recognised in profit or loss 718 % W R (1,043)
Exchange differences fE =5 84

At31December2020 R=-ZE=-ZF+=-A=+-H
Recognised profit or loss — MEZ R HER

Exchange differences b =R
At31December2021 R-B-—-§+=-f=+-H

Deferred income tax liabilities of approximately HK$11,135,000 as
at 31 December 2021 (2020: approximately HK$12,838,000) have
not been recognised for the withholding tax that would be payable
on the remittance of earnings of PRC subsidiaries. The related
unremitted earnings totaled approximately HK$222,705,000 at 31
December 2021 (2020: approximately HK$256,754,000), and the

Group does not intend to remit these unremitted earnings from the
relevant subsidiary to the Company in the foreseeable future.

TEER R — R DA R E LR
EREHENBER FAERTMEHREE
RABEZEEHMT

EEFTEH AR

Revaluation of ~ Additions due  Capitalisation
an investment

to business  of right-of-use

property  combination assets Total
-ERE R¥%  KAREE

WXER  AHMAE Bxf @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000

TR TR TR ThR

(1,706) (3,427) (1462) (7.361)
(19) 1,458 198 1973
(46) 67 (45) (24)
EEMESHEE
Capitalisation
of lease
liabilities Tax losses Total
HESBERL B it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT FHL
1,513 - 3,850
(233) - (1.276)
45 - 129

R-ZB-—F+-_A=+—H K&£H
It K S AP B B B A &) MO BE H & ) | JE A
TEANA FERIEIEFT 15 A B £54911,135,000
BT (ZZ =T 4F : 4912,838,00087T) °
R-BE-—F+-HA=+—08"##ERk
& H & 54 £ 49222,705,0008 7T (= Z
— T4 #9256,754,000/7T) 0 RARNEE
| RARRAGREBENE QK
It E R IE H B FIE R EARQF] o

RERRERARAR o —FT - —FFH



Raw materials R R

Work in progress & m

Finished goods SR

Less: Provision for obsolete inventories B REFEREE
Inventories, net FEFH

The cost of inventories included in cost of sales during the year
amounted to approximately HK$778,228,000 (for the year ended
31 December 2020: approximately HK$649,105,000).

Direct written off of and provision made for obsolete
inventories for the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted to
approximately HK$3,523,000 (2020: approximately HK$1,006,000)
and approximately HK$19,729,000 (2020: approximately
HK$29,293,000) respectively. These were recognised as an expense
and included in “cost of sales” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Trade receivables JEUNE 5 BR X
Bills receivables JrE IR 22 15

Less: provision for impairment of receivables 3 : & Uk 5% 18 R (8 4 4

Trade and bills receivables, net JEUE SRR N B F R

The credit period granted by the Group ranges from 15 days to 120
days.
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2020
—E—EE

—= =

HK$'000
TET

89,984
13,299
185,472

288,755
(47,085)

241,670

AEBHFAHERANEEXRALD
778,228,000 L (B E=—E —_FTF+—_A
=+—BIEFE : #9649,105,00087C) °

HE_ZT - —F+-_A=+—HILHF
B BEEMEEMREFEFHIENEE
2 Bl #93,523,0008 T (ZZE —T4F : 4
1,006,000 7T) & #719,729,0007% 7t (=
T T4 1 #929,293,000/8 7T) © I EHHE
RAERY Vit AGEE2EWERTH
[EHERA] o

2020
—T—FF

— =< —=

HK$'000
TAT

538,477
1,382

539,859
(40,328)

499,531

AEBEMETHEERN FI5H =120
H o



Ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables by invoice date is as
follows:

1-30 days 1230H
31-60 days 31260H
61-90 days 61290H
91-180 days 91£180H

Over 180 days 180H LA £

BT E®IIE -

Denominated in:

- RMB — AR
- US$ — &7

- HK$ —ETT

— Other currencies —HipEE

The fair value of trade and bills receivables, net are as follows:

Trade and bills receivables, net

As at 31 December 2021, trade and bills receivables of
approximately HK$87,448,000 (31 December 2020: approximately
HK$40,328,000) are impaired and have been provided for. See Note
3(a)(iv) for information about how impairment losses are calculated.
Net impairment losses on trade and bills receivables are presented
as “net impairment losses on financial assets” in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously impaired and provided for are credited in
profit or loss. Receivables for which an impairment provision was
recognised are written off against the provision when there is no
expectation of recovery. As at 31 December 2021, the individually
impaired trade receivables mainly represent receivables of
approximately HK$56,344,000 (31 December 2020: approximately
HK$17,247,000) from PRC customers which have remained long
overdue and management considered the recoverability is remote.

U 5 IR R e R A5 0% B

FEWE 5 Rk RB L% R B KR
ZaXiig UNNE

2020
—E-FF

HK$'000
TAT

263,953
69,887
34,947
71,731
99,341

539,859

2020
—T—EF

— =< —=

HK$'000
T

306,721
171,411
24,518
37,209

539,859

FEWE B LRI FE A AN T -

2020
—E-TF
HK$'000
FET

499,531

R-ZBE-—F+-A=+—H EKZ
5 R R N Z 45 #987,448,0008 T (— =
—EFF+ = A=+—H : 440,328,000
B BEHBEREREL BE - B BT
EREEENE R E2E M E30) ) °
JEWE SERREEE ZREEEFE
REEE2HEWRRENE[ECREER
BEEEFRE] - BEZ U E SR E R E I
SHRE BRI RIES B AR - 188 E
yEUE] - Bl B R R B 1 8 B B Uk FR 1B
REEHERHE R -_—F+_A
=+—H "  @AERBRENEKE SR
REZHEERFEZFAEE ARFKIE
4956,344,0008 L (R _ZTF +—
A=4+—8 : 417,247,000/ t) B &2
[E R & mT Uk o 1 B o

RERRERARAR o —FT - —FFH



Movements on the provision for impairment of trade and bills
receivables are as follows:

At 1 January m—H—H
Net provision of trade and bills receivables FRERE FHER
recognised during the year REBRHEEFE

Write-off of provision for impairment of

trade and bills receivables NERIEREEE]
Exchange differences ME W

At 31 December

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables
have been included in impairment losses on financial assets in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Amounts
charged to the allowance account are generally written off when

R+—A=+—8

EUEZEFREBENRERENES
LN

2020
—TTRF
HK$'000
TAET
26,530

14,554

S B U E B RR TR MR IR

(2,483)
1,727

40,328

ERER KR BB EHE KR E R

HEzERaRAZEMEERER
B T ABBRP A —RN B
& Y 3 5 g o

there is no expectation of recovery.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date is REEANSaEERR Y EXFREE
the fair values of trade and bills receivables disclosed above. HEWKE ZERREENATE -
The amount represents trade receivables from an associated ZREAEKN —HEEEATNE SE

e KA REEREEAFERSE
A% SRR R ﬂ?’FUE&IEL‘A}%TE%
B -BHTHNEEHR/OB - REZAH

company. The carrying value of the amount approximates its
fair value. The amount is unsecured, interest-free and mainly
denominated in HK$. The credit period granted is 90 days. The

ageing analysis of amount by invoice date is as follows: 2RO
2020
— 7 — E'E
HK$'000
FABT
1-30 days 12300 307
31-60 days 31%£60H 551
61-90 days 61290H 176
Over 90 days 90H A £ 1,935
2,969
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Current: mE
Deposits bire
Other receivables H b e Uk 3R T8

15,750 12,390

Non-current:
Long-term deposits

Denominated in: BIATEBIE :
- RMB — AR
- HK$ —BT
— Other currencies —HE%

Current: mE
Prepayments TE B 22,504
Others HAih 34,182

56,686 41,130

Non-current: ERB -
Prepayments TEfTRIE 11,510




Pledged bank deposit BEIKIRRITIFR
As at 31 December 2021, a bank deposit of US$1,500,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$11,689,000) was pledged as
collateral for the grant of a letter of banking facility in Hong Kong.

As at 31 December 2020, short-term bank deposits of
approximately HK$986,000 represented bank deposits of the Group
with original maturity over three months which were denominated
in Indian Rupee and RMB.

RITESRIRSE
EHRITFR

Cash at banks and on hand
Short term bank deposits (original
maturities of less than three months)

Denominated in:

BRIATE%IE

- US$ —ET
- RMB — AR
- HK$ — BT
— Euro — BT

— Other currencies

—HEH

The Group’s cash and bank balances and short-term bank
deposits with banks in the PRC and India as at 31 December 2021
amounted to approximately HK$89,425,000 (31 December 2020:
approximately HK$168,870,000) and approximately HK$386,000
(31 December 2020: approximately HK$800,000) respectively,
where the remittance of funds is subject to foreign exchange
control.

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2021

(REIBBELR=EAH)

2020
—E-TF
HK$'000
FET

R—ZE-_—F+_-_A=+—8"
1,500,000 7t (8 & 7 4911,689,0007%
T0) Z — BRI REEEBTBRITE
B2 o

RZEBE_ZF+_A=+—8 ' EHE
1717 7% 49986,00078 JT & R 2 2 B B B
ZEANEEELIMAREFEZ RS
B RITHER °

2020
—E—EE

—_—= =

HK$'000
TAT

338,695

54,259

392,954

162,629
133,394
51,246
18,135
27,550

392,954

R-ZB-—F+-HA=+—H Kx&£E
FRHEBEMONEMIRITZIRE RIETT
45k N 58 HR SR 77 17 3% 9 Bl 4989,425,000
BIL(ZE_ZEF+_A=+—"H:4
168,870,000/ 7T) K& #9386,000/% 7T (=
T-_TF+ - F=+—H : £800,000/&
J0) B e ERZIMNEE HRE o



Balance at
1 January 2020

Comprehensive income

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive
income/(loss)

Currency translation differences

Realisation of exchange reserve
upon dissolution of a subsidiary

Total comprehensive income

Final divicend relating to
2019

Interim dividend relating to
2020

Balance at
31 December 2020

Balance at
1 January 2021

Comprehensive loss

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income
Currency translation differences

Total comprehensive
income/(loss)

Appropriation

Final diviclend relating to 2020
(Note 33)

Lapse of share options

Balance at
31 December 2021

R-B-2F
-A-BNER

AEREH
Etb2E

K/ (B8
EBNEEE
Y -ANELTE
SRELRE

PEYEAR

808
“5C5FEY
RS

e S
=+-ANEE

B

“EC5FEY
*ERE (H&33)

BB

R-Bz-£+ZR
=t-RH4E

61,510 33,728

33,728

3,728

(17,706)

123

463,769

463,769

(93,535)

(93,535)

(10,933)
17,106

376,993

553,863

619,827

619,827

(93,535)

10,690

(82,845)

(10,933)

526,049



Other reserves (Continued)

Merger reserve

Merger reserve of the Group represents the difference between the
cost of investments in subsidiaries and nominal value of the share
capital and share premium of the subsidiaries in 2007 arising from
the application of merger accounting in consolidating the financial
information of the affected entities.

Statutory reserve fund

Under the relevant PRC laws and regulations, PRC companies
are required to allocate 10% of the companies’ net profit to the
fund until such fund reaches 50% of the companies’ registered
capital. The statutory reserve fund can be utilised, upon approval
by the relevant authorities, to offset against accumulated losses
or to increase registered capital of the companies, provided that
such fund is maintained at a minimum of 25% of the companies’
registered capital.

Share-based compensation reserve

The share-based compensation reserve is used to recognise the
grant date fair value of options issued to employees but not
exercised (Note 20).

(@) Share options

As at 31 December 2021, 562,000 share options (31
December 2020: 3,408,000 share options) were outstanding
and all of them are exercisable (31 December 2020: same).
Among the outstanding share options, 562,000 (31 December
2020: 562,000) share options will lapse on 4 September
2022. As at 31 December 2020, there were 2,846,000 share
options outstanding and these 2,846,000 share options were
lapsed on 9 September 2021.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, no
share options were exercised.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, 2,846,000 share
options were lapsed on 9 September 2021 (for the year
ended 31 December 2020: Nil).
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H {th 7% 8 (@)

=g
AEENAHREBRERHBARNKRE
RARBRAEREENBRATINR_-ZTTL
FERIFEEBVBENKRA A6
SRDEFEEMRMD G EREEE

JETE W
RIEBETBZERRL - PERBL
BIGREIFEN 0% D REZFER
EEZRBEEE QR EMEARN50%
Rl AERBERKERE BILERA
FAREHERFEESIRMARWEMRE
N EZFEEEBERRABEMERN
Z D25%H)KF o

KRG 1T BB E

ARG T & FEE T AR BRI T
BEEMATENBREARLANA
18 (F$5E20) ©

(a) BEHE
RZE_—4F+=—_A=+—8"
562,000 fERRE (ZZE =T F =
A =-+—H : 3,408,00017 & % #&)
HARITE - B2PHAF17E (=
Z-FF+—A=+—H: R °
FEM AT B #ES - 562,0001)
—EZEF+H=+—8":
562,00010) EREFN —_ T = —F
NAMARH - R=ZE_FF+=
A =+—H - 2,846,00017 B fi% 1&
& 7 7718 K Utk £52,846,00017 B8 A%
EER-_ZE-_—FAANBKRK-

BHE_Z-_ " FR-_Z_ZFF
TZA=T—BLFE #BET
R AE -

BE—_E-_—F+=-_A=+—H1
FE 2,846,000 BIXIER -
——FNANLBEAR(EBE_Z=
TEF+_A=F+—HILFE &) o



(a)

(b)

Share options (Continued)

As all the share options were fully vested, no share-based
payment expense was recognised during the year ended 31
December 2021 (for the year ended 31 December 2020: Nil).

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and
their related exercise prices are as follows:

At 1 January R—A—H
Lapsed R
At 31 December ®+=—B=+—8~

Shares award

On 23 September 2016, the Company has adopted the
Scheme, to (i) recognise the contributions by employees,
directors, consultants or advisers of or to the Group (the
“Eligible Persons”); and (ii) offer suitable incentives to attract
and retain targeted talents and personnel for the continuance
of operations and future development of the Group. Subject
to the rules as set under the Scheme, the Board may at its
absolute discretion to elect any Eligible Persons to participate
in the Scheme (the “Selected Persons”) and to award the
Company’s shares (the “Awarded Shares”) to these Selected
Persons, subject to vesting conditions, if any. These Awarded
Shares will be transferred to the Selected Persons upon their
fulfillment of all relevant vesting conditions.

In connection with the implementation of the Scheme, the
Group has signed a trust deed with an independent third
party to act as the trustee (the “Trustee”) to hold certain
shares on behalf of the Group and the Selected Persons before
these Awarded Shares are granted and/or vested. The Group
may from time to time instruct the Trustee to purchase the
Company’s shares from the market on the Stock Exchange and
to hold them in trust for the benefit of the Selected Persons.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
no shares were purchased on the Stock Exchange by the
Trustee on behalf of the Group. No shares were granted to
Eligible Persons under the Scheme during the year ended 31
December 2021 and 2020.

(a)

(b)

RAEERZERERAR o

i AR RE (@)

HRAEBRELDEERRE -
Eﬁ(@ﬁ:%:*iJr_H_ﬁL*
B 1F F I & R A B X
MAX (BEZE-_ZT_ZF+=-A
=t—HLEFE: &) -

WARITEBERE 2B REIEHE
TEEEFHET

2020
—E_EfF
Average Number
exercise price of share
in HK$ per options

share  (thousands)
BRAET
HEZ T BREHA

TE(E (F12)
0.62 3,408
0.62 3,408

IR 17 52 R

RZE—RENAZT+=H" &L
ARG E - N)B EAREE K
B8 EBF HHALEBER(AE
RALTDFELEIERL - RGiFR

BAERBUARSI RBEEBBEAL
BRABABRBAEBERBELE K%
RARW - BN BIMERA - &
ENERBBEREENAER
AT2 858 ([BEAL] RFA
HEFEEA LR O ARE N (82
B An 1) - tEZRE ST 55 B Ak 1 (10
B) - &tﬁéﬁbﬂxfﬂ%ﬁ’éﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ
BRIGTERTRESEEREAL -

RBITAEIMS  AKEE 8B
YE=DNETREROER D
&/ﬁiﬁ%%ﬁﬁ ERREAEE R

BALTHALERNHOZTA
(Fx%/\J)ﬁfuT SRt RIE - AR E
ATRERETEAERRHATS
BEARERD - WIAREALF
BmAKEAMEE AR BB R -

@:I:_:: __EE&—7—7£E
TA=1+—BILFE - Z7EAMR
BRARASERBXZABETW
B - HE—B-—5R-F_%
FT_A=+—BILFE - HERK
MREFTEIMEERA LR
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Ming Fai International Holdings Limited

Number of

shares HK$'000
kmE R FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BRO.EBIHERR
Authorised: ETE
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 and 13*‘—3— TF—-A—-8-
31 December 2021 ZBIEF+ZAZ+-HR
- _fﬁ'l' B=+—H 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: E?ﬁ‘ﬁ&%ﬁi
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 and B“— E-EF-fA-8"
31 December 2021 —BIEF+ZA=Z+t-HRK
—E- —$+ B=+—H 734,262,697 7,343
2020
—B_FF
HK$'000
T
Non-current: JEmE
Secured bank borrowings without WEZZREBER 2B
repayable on demand clause HRITIEE 303
Secured other borrowings without WL ZREBER 2B R
repayable on demand clause HHEHMEE 3,077
3,380
Current: e
Secured bank borrowings with BEBEREREERRZ
repayable on demand clauses BIREEITEE 116,528
Secured bank borrowings without WEIREREBIERZ
repayable on demand clauses BEERAEIEE 1,116
Secured other borrowings without WEZRBERKEBIERZ
repayable on demand clause FERBHEMEE 77
117,721
121,101
The borrowings are denominated in the following currencies: BRIANTEEINEZEENT :
2020
—EFTF
HK$'000
FHET
HK$ BT 18,922
uss$ ET 97,606
Japanese Yen (“JPY") HE(TRE]) 4,573
121,101
The carrying amounts of borrowings approximate their fair values HARTRZEETTEKR  EEZEREA
as the impact of discounting is not significant. BEANTERESE
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As at 31 December 2021, the repayment terms of the borrowings
without taking into account the effect of repayment on demand
clauses are as follows:

Within 1 year MIER
Between 1 and 2 years 15224 2 4
Between 2 and 5 years 2ES5F 7
Over 5 years S5 LA F

The weighted average effective interest rate of the Group's
borrowings at 31 December 2021 is 1.52% per annum (2020:
2.70% per annum).

The Group has complied with the financial covenants of its
borrowing facilities during the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020.

Except for bank and other borrowings of approximately
HK$3,122,000 as at 31 December 2021 (2020: approximately
HK$4,573,000), which was secured by personal guarantee of a
non-controlling interest of the Group, other bank borrowings were
secured by certain property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and a bank deposit of the Group.

R-BE-_—%+-_A=+—8 X~&E
BB EY BT MR B REERRNT
8T BENERHET

2020
ZEETF
HK$'000
FHET

55,370
25,383
38,778

1,570

121,101

ARER-_FZ—F+ZA=1t—HH
FEM%?H%%EﬂTﬁwnﬂ:

HE_ZT - R _ZFT_ZTF+
Zt+—HIEEE AEERETH
BB 2 R o

BR_ZE-_—F+_-_A=+—B8ET
R EAEE 43,122,000 T (ZE-F
F : 494,573,000/8 7T) JA AN £ B FE 7 A%
s 2 B AEREEAIN  EMIRITE
BEYNAEEETYME  BEREE -
FREEER—BIRITFRIEEA -

PAERERERERAR o —FT_—FFRH



The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for borrowings

are as follows:

Property, plant and equipment (Note 6)

Right-of-use assets (Note)
Bank deposit (Note 16)

Total carrying amount of assets pledged as

security

EEZCEREEZREENT

2020

—E-TF

HK$'000

TET

Y - BB KRR (Hite) 24,635

FREEE (Hit) 30,204

RITTFE (B iE16) -
BEFEE

Z R faRE 54,839

Note: The right-of-use assets pledged as security for borrowings as at 31
December 2021 are certain land use rights held by the Group (2020:

same).

At the balance sheet date, the following is the undrawn banking

facilities of the Group:

Floating rate:

Expiring within one year

REFIE

R—F R EH

i

The ageing analysis of trade payables by invoice date is as follows:

1-30 days
31-60 days
61-90 days
Over 90 days

Denominated in:
- RMB

— HK$

- US$

— Other currencies

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited

1230H

31260H
61290H
90H M

BIATEESIE

—AR¥
—BT

—X7T
—HpE"
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Mzt R=T=——F+-A=+—0 ' AEEK
RERREERZERBEERERAZE
TLHiERE (ZF_FF : HR) -

REER  AEEZ HARIBIERTR
R UNNE

2020
—ETF
HK$'000
AT

292,329

JERNE 5 BRFIRE R B R BRER H T a0
T

2020
—ETF
HK$'000
FET

131,371
2,434
2,542
1,607

137,954

2020
—E-TF
HK$'000
FET

113,928
4,183
16,852
2,991

137,954



2020

—ETF
HK$'000
FET
Current; VL2

Advance from customers (Note) BEAEMR (M) 26,586
Other payables H Ath & A FRIE 124,568
Accruals fE=+E A 133,360
284,514

Non-current; JERED -
Other payables H e R IE 10,363
294,877

The carrying values of these balances approximate their fair values.

Note:
Contract liabilities represent receipts in advance from the Group’s customers.

Revenue recognised during the year ended 31 December 2021 that was included
in the advance from customers balance at the beginning of the year amounted to
approximately HK$12,028,000 (2020: approximately HK$13,746,000). The Group
expects to deliver the goods to satisfy the remaining performance obligations of
these contract liabilities within one year or less.

Loans from non-controlling interests are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand. The carrying value of these liabilities
approximate their fair values.

As at 31 December 2021, these balances are denominated in the
following currencies:

HK$ BT
JPY =]

S EEROREEEL R FERE -

Ba
ANBEAMAREES KRB AMK -

BHE_T-_—F+_-_A=+—HILt&EE"
REVFABTFENREHR ZEERBAL
12,028,0007 7t (== —ZF 4 : 413,746,000/
TL) c ARBEEHR —FHERRRAZNER
NBITHEEHNABIZHRTENERT -

KEFERED 2 ERAEEM B
BRAREREER HWEFRENKEE
HEENFEBES -

R-F-_—F+=-A=1t—8 " KUT7
BRIEZ L EEHNOT

2020
—TE—EF

— =< —=

HK$'000
TAT

15,992
1,526

17,518

RERRERARAR o —FT - —FFH



The following expenses/(gains) are included in cost of sales,
distribution costs, administrative expenses and net impairment
losses on financial assets:

Cost of inventories sold HEFEXA
Auditor’s remuneration ZEE &
— Audit services — Z B AR T
— Non-audit services — e EAR T
Depreciation of property, plant and M - R REEN
equipment e
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENTE
Amortisation of intangible assets | EER S
Other lease expenses* HBEmTr
Provision for obsolete inventories BRETFEREE
Direct written off of obsolete inventories EEMERETE
Net impairment losses on financial assets TRIEERAEBEFE
Employee benefit expenses BB R
Transportation expenses B E A
Exchange gains, net [& 55 Uy 5 58
Advertising costs N
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BERZE
equipment &8
Direct operating expenses arising from REEEHESEA
an investment property that generates L HEEEMEZ
rental income HEEEME
Utilities expenses ~NAMX
* These expenses relate to short-term leases. They are directly charged as

expenses and are not included in the measurement of lease liabilities
under HKFRS 16.

Rental income (Note 8) el A (K:E8)
Income from sales of scrap materials SHERERHIA
Government grants (Note (})) WAL (K7520))
Gain on dissolution of subsidiaries SN NG Pl 6
Others H

Note:

(i) Government grants recognised were primarily related to the capital

investments of the Group; subsidies from the PRC Government and the
Hong Kong Government. There were no unfulfilled conditions and other
contingencies attached to the receipts of these grants.
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AEAHERA - DHEAA - ITRFEX R
EREEREBRFEANRS (K
@) 5T

2020
—EFF
HK$'000
TET

649,105

2,680
300

50,033
8,703
1,255
7,579

29,293
1,006

14,554

341,187
57,282
(11,910)
10,512

179

21
19,849

* WERXEEHEEEM LEEHRE
B ARX X T@EBERBRSE
AlF163E TR EREERE -

2020
—E-EE

—= =

HK$'000
TAET

310
659
24,810
8,201
1,751

35,731

HiaE

() EBERIBFHEBEIEAANEEZER
BE - RETEBRFEREERF 2 M
B 7 o WX 5 1 B 0 B S R K 1R
R EMBEAE -



e TEREL
RIRE A —
S Y

Salaries, wages and bonuses
Pension costs — defined contribution plans
Welfare and other expenses

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 include five directors
(for the year ended 31 December 2020: five directors) whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in Note 38.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, no payments or benefits
in respect of termination of directors’ services, remuneration in
respect of accepting office as director, emoluments in respect of
director’s other services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries and other benefits
were paid or made, directly or indirectly, to the directors; nor are
any payable (year ended 31 December 2020: Nil). No consideration
was provided to or receivable by third parties for making available
directors’ services (year ended 31 December 2020: Nil). There are no
loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in favour of the directors, their
controlled bodies corporate and connected entities (year ended 31
December 2020: Nil).

J\)?ET ?

2020

b e %S
HK$’000
TAT

328,553
1,769
10,865

341,187

EEBREHFHMAL
HE—_ZT-_—F+_A=+—HLHF
B AEEREEaTMALTEERS

EEHE_ZT-_TFE+_A=+—8
EFEE - RARES) EFHOMER
R A BT 7E38 ©

HE_T- 4+ -_HA=1+—HI#*F
B HMEEEEERKREESRED
MEEX M RERIES S RES
BEMESBS M TR H - phE
EREAMEEAQARSEWE QRS
BzHEMREMRES S FekizEtie
VAR B b F %5 0 INEEBE LA B IB RT3

BH(HE-—_E-_TF+—-_A=+—HIF
FE M) - BEREREFRBMA

FZNREREXF =TT MEKRZ

REEZ2_FT_FF+_A=1+—H
LFEE &) HBENESE EFE2XR

ZHEEEMNEEER R BAZER
EERIEMRS (BE-_T_FF
TZA=+T—RILFE: &) -

2020

—ZTFTF

HK$'000

T

Interest expenses on borrowings BEZHEMRX (2,571)
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEABZFERX (341)
Finance costs R IDFN (2,912)

Finance income B 1,042
Finance costs, net ISR AR F 58 (1,870)
BB RIERERA o —T_—FFH



Place of incorporation
Name of company and kind of legal entity

EMR LR
PGEL HEERERE

Ming Fai Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands, limited
liability company

HERRARLRR ERERHE EREMLA

Ming Fai Asia Pacific Company ~ Hong Kong, limited liability
Limited company

BT ABRAR i BRELAT

Ming Fai Enterprise International Hong Kong, limited liability
Company Limited company

PETXER R BREARA
BRAT

Ming Fai Industrial (Shenzhen) ~ The PRC, limited liability
Company Limited company (Taiwan, Hong
Kong and Macau's sole
proprietorship of legal
person)

HEZZ (R BRAT hE - EREARA(RER
ENER)

H-Square Hospitality Total Hong Kong, limited liability
Solution Company Limited company

WEMEERERRAR &% BREARA

Shenzhen H-Square Hospitality ~ The PRC, limited liability

Total Solution Company company (Taiwan, Hong
Limited Kong and Macau's sole
proprietorship of legal
person)
MIFEREEEEERAT  FE - EREALA (AR
ENEE)
IKONE Design Limited Hong Kong, limited liability
company

TEmRSRABRAE &R BREAAF

Particulars of

issued share

capital/

Principal activities registered
and place of operation capital
BRAIRE/

EfERZ

TEEBRSE i #E
Investment holding; Hong Kong US$100
REZR  BE 1005 7T

Trading of hospitality supplies HK$10,000,000
products, operating supplies and
equipment and health care and
hygienic products; Hong Kong
HEERHEREER S&R 10,000,000
mRRERERERRELR
mEE

Trading of hospitality supplies HK$1,000,000
products, operating supplies and
equipment and health care and
hygienic products; Hong Kong
HEBEREREER EER  1,000000%7T
mRRERERERREER
m EE

Manufacturing and trading of HK$50,000,000
hospitality supplies products,
trading of operating supplies and
equipment and manufacturing
and trading of health care and
hygienic products; the PRC
RERBEERMEREER - 50,000,000
HESERMRERBNREE
REERRERREERD

E

Trading of operating supplies and HK$1,000
equipment; Hong Kong

RECERRRRE  BE 10007

Trading of operating supplies and ~ HK$50,000,000
equipment; the PRC

HERERRRRE T 50,000,000 7T

Provision of professional solutions HK$1,000
in product design, corporate
branding, gifts & premiums, and
event management services;
Hong Kong

RESRERRT  LER 1,000%7
mIERBAR  BmR
RBRERY  BE
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Proportion of ordinary

shares held directly
g ERL A
by by
parent  the Group
HEAR HAEE
EERE  EERR
100% -
100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%

Proportion of
ordinary shares
held by non-
controlling
FERER
g Rk
LAl



Name of company

NEER

IKONE Design (Shenzhen)
Limited

==
=
m%

/

En
ot

Ming Fai Innovative Skin Care
Lab Limited

WERIE BT
BRAT

Wayoutokushin Co., Ltd.
wA e nGER

Quality Amenities
Supply Pte. Limited

Quality Amenities
Supply Pte. Limited

Teng Xun Limited

Teng Xun Limited

Oriental Lotus Hotel Supplies
Private Limited

Oriental Lotus Hotel Supplies
Private Limited

Place of incorporation
and kind of legal entity

EMRLBER
EREREY

The PRC, limited liability
company (Taiwan, Hong
Kong and Macau's sole
proprietorship of legal
person)

e ARELAR (AHR
ENEE)

Hong Kong, limited liability
company

B BRELAF

Japan, limited liability company

AA - BREALA
Singapore, limited liability
company

MR BRELLH

Cambodia, limited liability
company

India, limited liability company

HE BREEAH

Principal activities
and place of operation

IREBREEHEN

Provision of professional solutions
in product design, corporate
branding, gifts & premiums, and
event management services; the
PRC

RUEXERRGT CER
migE %Hm Bmk
EHREIRT : PE

Manufacturing and trading of
hospitality supplies products
and health care and hygienic
products; Hong Kong
HEREE @r@ﬁﬁﬁém&
ERERRELRM A

Product development and trading
of body care products; J apan
%EEEXF]FDD%%&E 7 E|$

Trading of hospitality supplies
products, operating supplies and
equipment and health care and
hygienic products; Singapore

%ﬁﬁﬁtfmﬁém‘%ﬁﬁ
m RiERRFEIRGER
(R ipI

Manufacturing and trading of
hospitality supplies products and
trading of operating supplies and
equipment; Cambodia

HERREREHENEERR
HELERARREE RER

Manufacturing and trading of
hospitality supplies products and
trading of operating supplies and
equipment; India
RERHEBEREREER R
HELERRLRE: IE

Proportion of ordinary

Particulars of shares held directly
issued share P& &R b Al
capital/
registered by by
capital parent the Group
BRIRE/
dfEse  HEAR  HARE
#E  EERE  EERE
HK$2,000,000 - 100%
2,000,000 7T - 100%
HK$100,000 - 100%
100,000/ 7T - 100%
JPY140,000,000 - 51%
140,000,0008 - 51%
Singapore dollar - 100%
100,000
100,000 - 100%
MR
US$4,000,000 - 100%
4,000,000% 7T - 100%
Indian Rupee - 51%
738,300,530
38,300,530 - 51%
HEEN

PAEERZERERAR o —F

Proportion of
ordinary shares
held by non-
controlling
FERER
FEEER
2L fil

49%

49%

49%

49%

——FFR



The amount of income tax charged/(credited) to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income represents:

Current income tax: BIERFTISHL

— Hong Kong profits tax —BBNER

— PRC enterprise income tax — Bl E PTG

— Other overseas profits tax — B8N BT
Adjustments in respect of prior year BEFERAE
Deferred income tax credit (Note 10) EEFTBRIE % (M5 10)

Taxation has been provided at the appropriate rates prevailing in
the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Hong Kong profits tax, PRC enterprise income tax, Singapore
corporate income tax and Cambodia corporate income tax are
calculated at 16.5% (2020: 16.5%), 25% (2020: 25%), 17%
(2020: 17%) and 20% (2020: 20%) on the estimated assessable
profits for the year ended 31 December 2021 respectively.

Taxes on other overseas profits have been calculated at the rates
of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates,
based on existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect
thereof.
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RiFeE2EERZNG(BE) WM5E
MERER

2020
=t St X5

=

HK$'000
TAET

20,243

7,341

403
(353)

27,634
(697)

26,937

AT AN R EE LR RDAEREAR
B8 FA B SR AT R4 o

ERFEH PRCEMESH - FNE
PEMSH RREEPEMSHIDIER
BE T -_—F+_-_A=+—HI&F
EEaERE R A 2 B A16.5% (ZF
“EF 1 165%) 25% (ZE_FF :
25%) “17% (ZE_ZTF : 17%) &
20% (T4 : 20%):TE -

HAb/BSMNE M 2 BIR TR AN SR B A& & P
ERDAER ZERRERBEEIRITA
ol B REGEE -



The difference between the actual income tax charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income and the amounts

RerTERERT BRSNS L ER
B AR R B R FT RS A g A 5T B AT

which would result from applying the enacted tax rates to profit BBz ZEERAOT
before income tax can be reconciled as follows:
2020
—T_EF
HK$’000
TAT
(Loss)/profit before income tax KRetPTSH A (B18) 57 101,537
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates REARSEREERRD
applicable to profits in the respective T A ) E AR R
jurisdictions FTERTIE 16,171
Income not subject to tax BARTHIMA (6,691)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes AR AR B 2 7,830
Utilisation of prior year tax losses BRBEFEZHBER (1,121)
Adjustments in respect of prior year BEFERAE (353)
Tax losses for which no deferred T RIERBELEFRSHEE
income tax asset was recognised KT IR & 18 11,101
Tax charge IS H 26,937

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 24% per annum for the
year ended 31 December 2021 (year ended 31 December 2020: 17%
per annum). The change is caused by a change in the profitability of
the Group’s subsidiaries in respective jurisdictions.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit
through the future taxation profits is probable. The Group has
unrecognised tax losses of approximately HK$282,853,000
(31 December 2020: approximately HK$220,435,000) as at 31
December 2021 to offset against future taxable income. These tax
losses expire in the following years:

HE-_Z - F+-A=1+—HLFE
MINEFEERREREF24% (B E
—ECTFF+_A=T—BLEE: 8
F17%) - BEWE THEA R A E BB
NEEBRBREER AN R E

FEIEFTIS A EE T EAR R R A5 A 25 7]
75 3B 2R PR B SR B v ) B4 3R T Bh BT A5 6
ZHRBESEBEER RE_—F+=
A=+—8H ' A&BZ RKERNIBEE
#9282,853,000 C (ZFT =T F+=H
=+ —H : #9220,435,000/%& JT) ' A &
SHARRERFIURA o L EFIIEE B SR
TEIFEfE R

2020

—T_EF

HK$’000

FAT

In the first to fifth years inclusive FFEFAF (BEEERT) 136,207
In the sixth to tenth years inclusive ERNFEETF (BEEEMT) 5,151
No expiry date f2 [z B ER 79,077
220,435

RERRERARAR o —FT - —FFH



(a) Basic

Basic (loss)/earnings per share attributable to owners of the
Company is calculated by dividing the (loss)/profit attributable
to owners of the Company by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of
the Company (HK$°000)

Weighted average number of

ordinary shares in issue (thousands) (FAR)

Basic (loss)/earnings per share KDAEE AEML
attributable to owners of the BEREXR(FE)
Company (HK cents) BRI GB)

(b) Diluted

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share attributable to owners of the
Company is calculated by adjusting the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Company has
share options as dilutive potential shares. A calculation was
done to determine the number of shares that could have
been acquired at fair value (determined as the average
annual market price of the shares) based on the monetary
value of the subscription rights attached to the outstanding
share options. The number of shares calculated as above was
compared with the number of shares that would have been
issued assuming the exercise of the share options.

Diluted loss per share attributable to owners of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2021 is the same as basic
loss per share attributable to owners of the Company as the
exercise of the outstanding share options would have an
anti-dilutive effect which results in a reduction in loss per
share for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2021

EN/NIE 2N
(&18) & (FET)

(a)

BE#ITE BB

(b)

R
QTR AR TRER (5
18),/ BRI R T B A (S (B
18), % FIR DA F OB B (T H3B IR
Z T B -

2020
—E-TF

79,046

728,839

10.8

g
AABEAEARGEERES (B
18),/ BFIARR A T #588E
EEBBRRLIRR  ABE R
EBEBRMEFHEE - AR
72 BB R P S E B A D ©
SHE TR RRE R RITEE R E
MM RERNEEEE BX
BAFE(EESRHNFEH2E
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RERBETEMEREITHRN
BB EHLLE -
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(b) Diluted (continued)

Diluted earnings per share attributable to owners of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2020 is as below:

(b) #8 @)
BE-_ZT-_TH5+-A=+—~H

IFFEZARRBER AREER
BEERNWT

2020
— 7 —_— 7 ﬁz
Profit attributable to owners of the Company KRAER AT
(HK$'000) (F#E7T) 79,046
Weighted average number of ordinary shares B 1T & B AR H) I 715 8L
in issue (thousands) (FAR) 728,839
Adjustment for: kg
— Share options (thousands) — R (F1) 545
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for TAR#E &R MR 2 T8
diluted earnings per share (thousands) (FAg) 729,384
Diluted earnings per share attributable to AAREEAEBEESREEER
owners of the Company (HK cents) (FBAl) 10.8

On 26 May 2021, a final dividend of HK1.5 cents per share for the
year ended 31 December 2020 was approved by the Company'’s
shareholders. Total dividend of approximately HK$11,014,000 was
paid out, including dividend paid to the shares held for the Scheme.

The Board did not recommend the payment of any interim dividend
for the six months ended 30 June 2021 nor any final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

RZE-_—FRAA=-+/,"B A28k’
REEREHEE T -_TF+ 8
=+ —HIEFEZRAREGRSH
il = 911,014,000/ 7T 2 & B 4B 5E E &
EE - BB EITHE 2 KRBk
ZIRE -

BEEETERRNBE_ZT=_—F A
=+ HLENEA ZE A BB A KA
E_ZT-—F+-_A=+—HIEFEZ
AR E o

PAERERERERAR o —FT_—FFRH



(a) Reconciliation of (loss)/profit before income (a) RETATBH A (BE) R

tax to cash (used in)/generated from BEKRER (FTH), 88
operations & IR
2020
—T_FF
(Loss)/profit before income tax RetPTEHLAT (B18)
St K| 101,537
Adjustments for: EEE T3 %
— Depreciation of property, - HER
plant and equipment (Note 6) BEBIE (K ite) 50,033
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets —ERAREENE
(Note 7(b)) (BtzE7(b)) 8,703
— Amortisation of intangible assets — W EEEH
(Note 9(b)) (H15#9(b)) 1,255
— Gain on dissolution of subsidiaries 3 CIEYNE P& (8,201)
— Loss on disposal of property, plant —HEME  BEX
and equipment (Note 34(b)) RiEREE
(H15£34(b)) 179
— Finance income (Note 29) — BARSUR A (B 3£29) (1,042)
— Finance costs (Note 29) — IR ([ 7229) 2,912
— Provision for obsolete inventories -REFEMNEE 29,293
— Direct written off for obsolete —BEEMERERE
inventories (Note 11) (Hiaz11) 1,006
— Net impairment losses on —SMEEREERE
financial assets (Note 12) FRE (W at12) 14,554
— Share of loss/(profit) of —Eh—HEErE 2z
an associated company B8 (C#HA]) (381)
— Share of loss/(profit) of —EH—HeEEY
a joint venture &8 CaFl) (24)
— Fair value gain on an investment ——IEREWMEZ
property (Note 8) N EWE (Hi28) (787)
— Impairment of goodwill (Note 9(a)) — EERE (H519@) -
Changes in working capital: LEECEE
- Inventories —FE 9,879
— Trade and bills receivables —EWRESERNEE 90,605
— Other assets —HMEE 11,882
— Other financial assets — IR SHA AT R 2
at amortised cost HtemEE 313
— Trade payables —ERNE SRR (102,496)
— Accruals and — BT ERR
other payables H M E A FRIE (59,455)
— Amount due from — FEUL— R & A T
an associated company SRIE 2,076
— Amounts due from joint ventures —EWEENERE (546)

Cash (used in)/generated from operations & &2 (FTA) /FriSH
Be 151,295
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(b) Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and

equipment

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from
disposal of property, plant and equipment comprise:

Net book amount:
— Property, plant and equipment
(Note 6)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment (Note 26)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
and equipment

MIH

R K 5%

AREDFE ¢
MK - BE MK
(Btite)
HEME  BELREZ
B3 18 (it 26)

L]

HEME - BFE R&iE
PS5} IA

RS 50R

Loans from
non-
controlling
interests
R
BRNER
HK$'000
THEL

17,446

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities from financing (c)
activities
Liabilities from financing activities
REMETH2EE

Lease

Borrowings liabilities

HE HEEE

HK$'000 HK$'000

THT THT

As at 1 January 2020 RZE-ZEF—HA—H 66,423 8,137
Cash flows Beng 52,152 (5,986)
Addition to lease liabilities HEEERE 7,308
Finance cost (Note 29) BB (f7229) 2,571 341
Foreign exchange adjustments S & 5% (45) 233
As at 31 December 2020 NS e ey e = 121,101 10,033
Cash flows BHeng 18,006 (5,852)
Addition to lease liabilities HEEERE - 1,134
Finance cost (Note 29) BB (f7229) 1,990 435
Foreign exchange adjustments ~ #ME 3% 251 128
As at 31 December 2021 R-E-—-&F+-A=1+—H 141,348 5,878

RAERERZERERA

(b) LEWR BMERREBHRE

REEReRERD  LEME -

BE

2020

—?—7

HK$'000
TAET

807

(179)

628

REMETH 2AEZHIR

Total

st
HK$'000
TAL

92,006

46,166
7,308
2,912

260

148,652

12,307
1,134
2,425

77

164,595

R —FFR



As at 31 December 2021,

the capital commitments of the

Group were approximately HK$21,843,000 (31 December 2020:

approximately HK$6,654,000).

Contracted but not provided for in the
consolidated financial statements

BRI AL R
iR A BT RS MR

Related parties are those parties that have the ability to control the
other party or exercise significant influence in making financial and
operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they

are subject to common control.

The ultimate controlling parties of the Group are Mr. CHING Chi
Fai, Mr. CHING Chi Keung, Mr. LIU Zigang and Ms. CHAN Yim

Ching.

(a) Significant related party transactions

The Group has carried out significant transactions with the

following related parties:

Name of related party

MBS HE £8

Ming Fai Plastic Industrial
Company

SRR ERAA

Quality Amenities Supply (M)
Sdn. Bhd.

Quality Amenities Supply (M)
Sdn. Bhd.

iBridge Technology
(Shenzhen) Limited
("iBridge Technology”)

BEERE ORI BRAF]

(TR EERE)

Principal business activities

ITEXBED

R-_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—8" $%l
A & N A IE 421,843,000 T (ZE =
TFE+ - A =+—H : 46,654,000
JL) °

2020
—T—EF

—_—= =

HK$'000
TR

6,654

Al —mRefEHl 5 — 7 R E K

MIRERR FITRERATE N RH
Bt o RE|HRAEHOBEET THER
Bl T o

AEEZ &EER T RBEELE 2
TREE - BIFRITERRYMBSL L -

(a) EXFABLERS

Ao E R AT B
T

ETEKR

Relationship with the Group
BEAREEBER

Manufacturing of plastic products
(Ceased manufacturing of plastic
products since April 2003)

HEPRER(B_ZTT=F
mARKIEREERER)

Trading of hospitality supplies
products, operating supplies and
equipment and health care and
hygienic products

ﬁ @ﬁ@ﬁﬁ@%m‘%@%ﬁ

RERRREERFEAR

Provision of information technology
services

RHE AR SRSS
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Partnership owned by Mr. CHING
Chi Fai, Mr. YEUNG Tin Loi and
Mr. CHING Chi Keung

HIZEIESEE BRREER
BERTEMEBNEREE

Associated company of the Group

Joint venture of the Group

REE

i

H>

MAEEDRE



(a) Significant related party transactions

(Continued)

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group had the following significant

transactions with related parties:

(i) Sales of goods
—to Quality Amenities
Supply (M) Sdn. Bhd.
— to iBridge Technology

(i) Purchase of goods
— from iBridge Technology

(i) Rental charged
— by Ming Fai Plastic Industrial
Company

Sales of goods are transacted at prices mutually agreed

between the parties.

Purchases of goods are services are transacted at prices

mutually agreed between the parties.

(a) EXBEBEARS (@)

BRRER B ISR M &0 0 AT

BEN AEBEEBAK S ETH
BERARSIT
2020
—T-FF
HK$'000
FHT
() EEE®
— FQuality Amenities
Supply (M) Sdn. Bhd. 7,318
— TREHERE 154
(i) BEE®
—BREERE 200
(i) WEM A
— R
EXNA 1,292
SHEEMDIZEIAA <A E R
EREBETRS o

BEERMEREDZRTOR 2H
EEMENERETRS

The Group leased certain properties from Ming Fai Plastic
Industrial Company as one of its production bases in the PRC.
The transaction is carried out at prices agreed between the
parties.

$E@ﬁ%ﬁﬁkﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%

ETMEERENGTEMNES —
BAEEEM - LR Z KT
Z B E R E M BRAETT -

PAERERERERAR o —FT_—FFRH



Basic salaries, housing allowances, K% - FEERM - Hab 2
other allowances and benefits-in-kind RIS EF =
Contributions to pension plans RIRSETEIH

Amounts due from FEWLA T & 77 RIE
— Quality Amenities Supply (M) — Quality Amenities Supply (M)
Sdn. Bhd. (Note 13) Sdn. Bhd. (475£13)
— iBridge Technology - BigE R
— Advance Medical Designs — Advance Medical Designs
(Hong Kong) Limited (Hong Kong) Limited




Balance sheet of the Company as at 31 December

2021

ASSETS
Non-current asset
Investment in a subsidiary

Total non-current assets

Current assets
Other current assets
Other financial assets
at amortised cost
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Amount due from a joint venture
Tax receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets
Total assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to the
owners of the Company

Share capital

Shares held under the Scheme

Share premium

Other reserves

Total equity

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Accruals and other payables
Amounts due to subsidiaries
Dividends payable

Total current liabilities
Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities
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The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of
Directors on 24 March 2022 and was signed on its behalf.

CHING Chi Fai

BEE
Director

EF

R-E—
KAREEEER
Note
it
A
RARRIEEABRR

—F+=A=+—A2

235,673

235,673

183

79
792,625
38

267
2,417

795,609

1,031,282

7,343
(6,051)

613,261

406,001

1,020,554

1,064
9,489
175

10,728
10,728

1,031,282

—2-_—_%=AH

TTHMESEESHAESTRAATESRERK

RERE °

CHING Tsun Wah
B

Director

EF

RAERERZERERA
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Note A: Reserve movement of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2021

Balance at 1 January 2020 R-B-BE-A-HZ&H

Comprehensive income 2EKE
Profit for the year AERRF
Total comprehensive income ~ 2E K& 45

Final dividend relating to 2019

“T-NFEZ KBRS
Interim dividend relating to 2020 B

“EoTEF AR
Balance at 31 December 2020 R-E-ZEE+-A=1+-Hz#&#%

Balance at 1 January 2021 R-B-_-F-f—-Hz&&H

Comprehensive income 2EKE
Profit for the year RERRF
Total comprehensive income 2 EKH4EHE

—E-TEE Y RERS
BRESN

Final dividend relating to 2020
Lapse of share options

Balance at 31 December 2021 R=-ZE=-—-F+-A=+—-Hz#&#H

Note:

Merger reserve of the Group represents the difference between the cost of
investment in subsidiaries and nominal value of the share capital and share
premium of the subsidiaries in 2007 arising from the application of merger
accounting in consolidating the financial information of the affected entities.
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_|_
=t+—HLEFEXQT

MEA: BE-F=—
A2 s
Merger  Share-based
reserve compensation Retained
(Note) reserves earnings
AORE  MRAIHE
(Hi#t) HeRE REBF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET BT TET
224,147 27,897 155,558
- - 27,524
- - 27,524
- - (21,865)
- - (7,260)
224,147 27,897 153,957
Mt -

F4+=

=

Total
@t
HK$'000
TAET
407,602
27,524
27,524

(21,865)
(7,260)

406,001

ARENSHREBERMNERRNREKRAE R
BRAAEEMNBRRAN _ZZLFAHIFE
ERMBERBRAA HEFHAMEENRND

i (B R o



Fees

Basic salaries, housing allowances, other

2k

allowances and benefits-in-kind MIES R =
Contributions to pension plans BRIREFTEI

Executive Directors (Note (i)
Mr. CHING Chi Fai

Mr. CHING Chi Keung

Mr. LIU Zigang

Mr. CHING Tsun Wah

Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung

Independent Non-Executive
Directors
Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan

BAES ()
BEREL
BEELE
HrAEs
e eyidd
ZEmEE

BUFHTES

L EE

Mr. MA Chun Fung Horace (Note (i) % 1&I& 5 4 (#:2(i)

Mr. NG Bo Kwong
Mr. SUN Yung Tson Eric

REFATE
RERREE

Mr. KWONG Tony Wan Kit (Note (i) 7% #8554 (4132 i)

Non-Executive Director
Ms. CHAN Yim Ching

1,350 5299

JEFr ~ (E552Bh - EREL

1,693




The emoluments of each Director and chief executive of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2020 are as follows:

Name of Directors Fees Salary

RS ik e
HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TAL

Executive Directors (Note (i)) HITES (M)

Mr. CHING Chi Fai BEELE 120 1,258

Mr. CHING Chi Keung BratE 120 761

Mr. LIU Zigang BIFRIEE 120 912

Mr. CHING Tsun Wah BEERE 120 762

Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung ZEERE 120 1,363

Independent Non-Executive BUKHITES

Directors

Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan AL A 150 -

Mr. MA Chun Fung Horace (Note (i)  B1RIE 5% 5 (f73i) 150 -

Mr. NG Bo Kwong REKEE 150 -

Mr. SUN Yung Tson Eric BRBEE 150 -

Non-Executive Director FHTES

Ms. CHAN Yim Ching REELT 150 -

Total ek 1,350 5,056

Note:

@

The role of chief executive officer has been performed collectively by all

the Executive Directors, including the Chairman of the Company.

(ii) Mr. MA Chun Fung Horace resigned as Independent Non-Executive
Director on 13 December 2021.

(i) Mr. KWONG Tony Wan Kit appointed as Independent Non-Executive
Director on 14 December 2021.
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2T _TFT_A=+—HILF
B RARRISEEFEREZITHRASHM
W
Employer's
Share-based contribution
Discretionary payment  to a retirement
bonuses expense  benefit scheme Total
SR EERERAE
Xf# RHEEE
BB X R ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAL TAL FEL
720 - 18 2,116
526 - 18 1,425
735 - 32 1,799
676 - 18 1,576
728 - 18 2,229
- - - 150
- - - 150
- - - 150
- - - 150
- - - 150
3,385 - 104 9,895
Mt -
(i) TREZRZBBHEERTES
(BREAREER) HFARET -
iy BRBLEEER-_ZT=Z_—F+=

(iii)

AT=ABEBIIFNTES -

BafrEeEe R

—E-—F+=

AT BEERERBYIFNITES -
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